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SNEED, VINE & PERRY
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
ESTABLISHED 1926

900 CONGRESS AVENUE, SUITE 300
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701

TELEPHONE (512) 476-6955 FACSIMILE (512) 476-1825
Writer's Direct Dini: Writer’s e-mail address:
{512) 494-3135 rkleemania sncedvine.com

December 8, 2016
via email

Board of Adjustment

c/o Leane Heldenfels

Development Services Department

1% Flootr/Development Assistance Center
P.O. Box 1088

Austin, Texas 78767

Re; C15-2015-0147 and C15-2015-0168; 8901 West Hwy 71, Austin, Texas 78736

Dear Chairman Burkhardt and Members of the Austin Board of Adjustment;

This firm represents the appellants in the above referenced appeals (“Appellants”). At
the December 9, 2015 hearing on the appeal of the outdoor amphitheater, the Board directed the
Appellants and LifeAustin to attempt to negotiate an agreement regarding the use and impacts of
the outdoor amphitheater. As you know, representatives of these parties have requested multiple
postponements to allow additional time to reach an agreement to resolve the appeal.

After five months of direct negotiations, the parties agreed to mediate with Dean Kilgore
as the mediator. LifeAustin insisted that the mediations be conducted under the mediation rules
of the Texas Civil Practices and Remedies Code and the Appellants agreed. The first mediation,
held on June 28, 2016, lasted twelve hours but did not yield an agreement. A second mediation,
held on July 28, 2016, lasted thirteen hours and yielded an agreement among the parties
("Mediated Agreement™). A copy of the Mediated Agreement is attached.

The Mediated Agreement obligates LifeAustin to construct and implement additional
sound mitigation structures at the outdoor amphitheater. In exchange, the Appellants agree to
drop the two appeals after the sound mitigation measures are completed.

As you will see, the Mediated Agreement calls for the negotiation of several provisions,
including how to monitor sound levels and enforcement. Upon the negotiation of the
outstanding provisions, the parties are to enter into a final Compromise and Settlement
Agreement (“Final Agreement”). The Mediated Agreement is an enforceable contract under
Texas law.

Pursuant to the Mediated Agreement, the parties met with City staff in August regarding
possible City enforcement of the Final Agreement. Beginning in late August and through mid-
October, the parties exchanged several drafis of a Final Agreement. Negotiations through
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exchanging drafis were difficult, but progress was made on many issues. Unfortunately, the
parties were not able to reach agreement on several key issues.

Board of Adjustment \)\

The parties appear to be at a stalemate on whether to return to mediation or negotiations
on the Final Agreement. The Appellants have requested a return to mediation and LifeAustin is
refusing that request. Attached are my November 28, 2016 letter requesting a return mediation,
the November 30, 2016 letter from LifeAustin’s attorney and my responding December 2, 2016
letter. These letters lay out each side’s perspective on returning to mediation. '

Under the Mediated Agreement, “the parties agree to reconvene the mediation if a dispute
arises regarding the further documentation, conclusion or performance of this settlement . . .»
The Appellants are in a quandary as to how to proceed before the Board. The Appellants remain
committed to complying with the Mediated Agreement and want to return to mediation to
resolve the remaining issues. The Appellants are not interested in terminating the Mediated
Agreement. Mr. Weisbart’s November 30, 2016 letter speaks for itself on LifeAustin's position.

The Appeliants request a postponement of their two cases until the Board’s February
2017 meeting to provide an opportunity for the parties to return to negotiations and, if necessary,
return to mediation. Additionally, 1 cannot attend the Board’s January 2017 meeting due to
vacation plans. Anticipating that the Board would be equally perplexed about the current
circumstances, the Appeliants have not urged or asked their members to attend the December 12,
2016 Board of Adjustment meeting,

Since it has been a year since the December 9, 2015 hearing and there are several new
members on the Board, | have attached a copy of a transcript of the December 9" hearing. I ask
that this letter and the attachments be added to record of the appeal regarding the outdoor
amphitheater,

I'hope the Board will be able to provide the parties guidance on how to proceed.
Sincerely,

SNEED, VINE & PERRY,
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

sy fost e

Robert J. Kleeman

RJK:dm
enclosures

' The Appellants do not agree with many of the statements in Mr. Weishart letter but these differences are not
germane to the problem before the Board. :
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December 2, 2016
Via email only
Geoff Weisbart

Weisbart Springer Hayes, LLP
212 Lavaca, Suite 200
Austin, Texas 78701

Re: Agreement between LifeAustin and Covered Bridge POA and Hill Country Estates HOA;
November 30, 2016 Drafi Final Agreement

Dear Geoff:

The Covered Bridge Property Owners Association and the Hill Country Estates Home Owners
Association (collectively, the Associations) have instructed me to respond to your November 30, 2016 letter.

In your letter you state: “The Church simply needs to know whether it has an agreement with the
HOAs, and if not, it is time for a vote of the BOA.” The simple answer is the Memorandum of Settlement
Agreement signed by the Associations and your client on July 28, 2016 (Mediated Agreement) is the
agreement between the parties. As you well know, the Mediated Agreement is an enforceable contract
pursuant to Section 154.071 of the Texas Civil Practices and Remedies Code.

The Mediated Agreement identifies several issues that require further negotiation that will be included
in a final agreement described in Section 2 of the Mediated Agreement as “. . . a formal compromise and
settlement agreement reflecting the terms hereof.” (Final Agreement)

Section 3 of the Mediated Agreement states: “The parties agree to reconvene the mediation if a
dispute arises regarding the further documentation, conclusion or performance of this settlement (but this
provision does not imply that this agreement is not otherwise enforceable according to its terms).”

The negotiation of the Final Agreement has been difficult and contentious due to the complexity of the
issues and the mutual mistrust between the parties, as evidenced by the tenor and content of your November
30, 2016 letter. As you know, several drafts of the Final Agreement were exchanged between late August and
early October. As suggested in your October, 10, 2016 letter, it had become apparent that the process of
exchanging drafts was unlikely to facilitate reaching an agreement on the terms of a Final Agreement,

In response to your suggestion to reconvene mediation with Dean Kilgore, the Associations asked for
a face to face meeting with LifeAustin, including attorneys, but without a mediator. The Associations felt that
a face to face meeting with representatives of LifeAustin would create an opportunity for better
communication and understanding between the parties; especially after the extraordinarily lengthy and difficult
25 hours of mediation (with less than 2 hours of direct communications between the parties) and the two
months of exchanging draft documents.

LifeAustin agreed to a face to face meeting and both sides worked together to identify the priority of
issues to be discussed at the November 10, 2016 meeting. The first and most important issue for the meeting
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was how the Associations would be able to monitor the front of house sound limit established in the Mediated
Agreement.

Shortly after the beginning of the November 10™ meeting, representatives of the Associations and
LifeAustin met face to face (with attorneys present) to discuss various aspects and capabilities of the
permanent sound level monitoring system at the outdoor amphitheater. It was a cordial and productive
discussion lasting less than forty-five minutes. Unfortunately, the parties never met face to face again that day.
Instead, you shuttled back and forth between the parties. The meeting ended with no agreement on monitoring
sound levels or any other issue and with all parties experiencing high levels of frustration.

Over the ensuing weekend, the Associations assessed the failure of the November 10" meeting and
determined that returning to mediation was the only viable path to successfully completing the Final
Agreement. At the Board of Adjustment meeting on November 14™, I informed you of the Associations® intent
to request a return to mediation. You responded positively to a return to mediation. On November 15, I sent
you an email conveying the Associations’ formal request to return to mediation and a request for confirmation
that LifeAustin would return to mediation. On November 28™ [ sent you a letter asking again for a response to
the Associations’ request 10 return to mediation.

In your responding letter of November 30th you assert that LifeAustin is no longer contractually
obligated to participate in mediation because LifeAustin and the Associations modified Section 3 of the
Mediated Agreement by meeting without a mediator. It is, frankly, absurd to say that the parties engaging in
further negotiations, as contemplated by the Mediated Agreement, somehow waived or amended the specific
agreement to engage in mediation. The Associations have never agreed to amend Section 3 or any other
material provision of the Mediated Agreement because no such amendment has ever been discussed or even
proposed.

Likewise, you know that the draft Final Agreement transmitted with your November 30 letter is not
acceptable to the Associations. This “accept our terms or else” tactic reasonably appears to be an attempt to
intimidate the Associations.

While the negotiating process has been frustrating, tiresome and more recently fraught with harsher
rhetoric, the Associations remain fully committed to meeting their obligations under the Mediated Agreement.
On behalf of the Associations, | respectfully request that LifeAustin abandon its threatening positions and
return to mediation. Based on our previous discussions, [ believe there are only a few issues to negotiate.
Resolving these last issues may be difficult, but not impossible if the parties negotiate in good faith.

[ hope from you as soon as possible.

Sincerely,

() ot b

Robert J. Kleeman

RJK/dm

cc: Mike Kirk
Kim Butler
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Robert Kleeman

Sneed, Vine & Perry

900 Congress Avenue, Suite 300
Austin, Texas 78701

Re:  LifeAustin Church, the Hill Country Estates Home Owners Association and
the Covered Bridge Property Owners Association

Dear Robert:

This letter is intended to respond to your November 15, 2016 email and the included
request to return to mediation.

I hope you will recall, that on October 10, 2016, | wrote to you as counsel for the HOAs,
requesting a return to mediation so that we could finalize the draft Agreement. After your
receipt of my letter, you indicated to me that the HOAs declined the request to return to
mediation, instead asking to meet without a mediator, opting out of the re-mediation
requirement. You told me that your clients did not want to incur the cost and time associated
with another mediation session.

Despite having made the mediation return request, the Church agreed to the HOAs’
request to opt out of the re-mediation requirement. You might also recall that once the Church
agreed to the re-mediation opt out request, the HOAs then placed several demands on the Church
before the HOAs would even attend the meeting. One of those demands was that Pastor Randy
Phillips had to be in attendance for the full scheduled time set aside for the meeting. The Church
agreed, and Pastor. Phillips set aside time to meet with the HOAs, as did four other Church
representatives. Another demand made by the HOAs after the Church agreed to the opt out
request was the deletion of certain language in two paragraphs of Section 2 of the then current
draft Agreement. Again, the Church agreed to the demands of the HOAs, without any further
negotiation, to help bring about the meeting and see whether the draft Agreement could be
finalized. All we asked was for the HHOAs to be prepared to finalize the Agreement at the
meeting.

The Church then met with the HOAs and yourself at our offices for our scheduled four
hour meeting. 1 had made it clear to you that the Church was coming to the meeting, with the
intent of completing and signing the Agreement, so that the Church could begin the process of
finishing the work described in the sound mitigation plan. 1 even spent ninety minutes with you
before the meeting, going over the draft, to help identify issues that you wanted to address at the

212 Lavaca Street, Suite 200 Austin, TX 78701 512.652.5780 888.844.8441 F 512.682.2074 wshlip.com
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meeting. During our call, you even indicated that you wanted to re-negotiate the enforcement
terms you provided, which the Church had accepted.

Unfortunately, at the meeting, the HOAs did not seem to even get past their first issue,
access to logs, despite the fact that we went over the prescribed time limit by two hours. From
the Church’s perspective, the time in the meeting was spent not on moving the ball forward to
allow for the construction of the Plan improvements, but on changing log demands by the HOAs
that seemed to be inconsistent and difficult to discern. Please recall that the HOAs even, two
days before our meeting, threatened to not show up if full online access to the logs was not
agreed to by the Church-something that [ had to advise you was clearly not contemplated in the
mediation agreement.

As you know, no agreement was reached at the meeting. Now it appears the HOAs will
be asking for another postponement of the BOA vote, and have now asked to disregard their
request to opt out of the re-mediation requirement. [ hope you can appreciate that from the
Church’s standpoint, the process of negotiation of the final details of the Agreement have
become too monocular, too detailed and too maddening to seemingly come to a final signed
Agreement with the HOAs, The Church simply needs to know whether it has an agreement with
the HOAs, and if not, then it is time for a vote of the BOA.

So, in an effort to try one last effort to complete the Agreement, the Church reviewed the
comments you provided to me in our lengthy phone call, and went back to modify the final draft,
so that the HOAs can be made aware of what the Church will accept and agree to. [ am
enclosing the Agreement, with the changes you requested that the Church will accept. Upon
execution of this Agreement by the HOAs, the Church will begin to seek approval for and build
the sound mitigation components of the Plan, all of which will materially benefit the members of
the HOAs.

To date, the evidence has been quite clear that the Church has been in full compliance
with the City noise ordinances and all City of Austin requests. The Plan represents a sincere
effort by the Church to comply to even higher standards than it lawfully must comply with. The
Plan also provides for additional sound reduction, something it is not required to provide, |
suspect that the attached Agreement does not contain every little non-material item that you or
the HOA representatives wanted in the final Agreement, but 1 hope you and the HOA
representatives will balance the benefit of what the HOAs are receiving with the reality that the
Church is fully compliant with all noise ordinances and with all laws. The Church is not
required to extend these concessions, but has done so to try and make things better for everyone.

The Church is prepared to sign the Agreement, upon notice that the HOA representatives
have signed the Agreement. The Church will then begin the process of obtaining approvals to
build the plan, make the initial changes required under the Plan, build the improvements and at
the prescribed time, record the Memorandum as a restrictive covenant.
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Piease understand that the Church, in light of what has occurred, does not believe it has
an obligation to re-mediate the drafting disagreement. In the event that the HOAs do not agree to
execute the Agreement, the Church will ask that the BOA proceed to a vote on December 12.

The Church simply asks that if the Agreement is going to be accepted, that it be signed
and returned by the HOAs by 5:00 p.m. CST, Monday, December 5, 2016. If we do not receive
the Agreement executed by the HOAs by 5:00 p.m. CST on December 5th, we will assume your
clients are refusing to execute the Agreement and the Church will proceed accordingly.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter,

Sincerely,
— e
Geoffrey D. Weisbart
Enclosure
c: Steve Metcalfe (Via Email — smetcalfe@mwswiexas.com)

Michele Rogerson Lynch (Via Email — miynch@mwswtexas.com)
Nicole LeFave (Firm)
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November 28, 2016

Mr. Geoff Weisbart via email: gweisbart@wshlip.com
Weisbart Springer Hayes

212 Lavaca Street, Suite 200

Austin, Texas 78701

Re:  Settlement negotiations between LifeAustin Church, the Hill Country Estates
Home Owners Association and the Covered Bridge Property Owners Association

Dear Geoff:

At the November 14, 2016 Board of Adjustment meeting, | informed you that my clients
intended to request a return to mediation to resolve the outstanding issues to achieve a final
agreement pursuant to the mediated settlement agreement. On November 15, 2016, | sent you an
email confirming my clients’ request to return to mediation with Dean Kilgore. 1 also conveyed
my clients’ desire to hold the mediation before the December 12' meeting of the Board of
Adjustment.

In my November 15, 2016 email I requested confirmation that your client is willing to
return to mediation. So far [ have not received any response to my request for such confirmation.
I understand from your office that you were out of the country for a portion of the week of
November 14™ and that last week was a short week due to Thanksgiving, but it has been two
weeks since 1 presented my clients’ request to return to mediation. | again request written
confirmation that your client is willing to return to mediation. if I do not receive the requested
confirmation by November 30, 2016, my clients will have no alternative but to conclude that
your client is not willing to return to mediation pursuant to the mediated settlement agreement.

I look forward to hearing from you by November 30, 2016.
Sincerely,

A L

Robert J. Kleeman

RIK/dm

cc:  Covered Bridge POA
Hill Country Estates HOA

AUSTIN . GEORGETOWN
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VIA E-MAIL

City of Austin Board of Adjustment
c/o Leanne Heldenfelds

Board of Adjustment Liaison

City of Austin

One Texas Center, 5th Floor

505 Barton Springs Road

Austin, Texas 78704

Re:  Interpretation Appeal, 8901 State Highway 71 West (LifeAustin Church), case
number ¢15-20150147

Dear Members of the Board of Adjustment:

This firm, together with the law firm of Metcalfe Wolff Stuart & Williams, LLP,
represents LifeAustin Church (“the Church”) in the above-referenced matter. By way of this
letter, the Church intends to correct several of the misstatements contained in Appellants’ filings,
and bring to your attention several important matters of fact and law that are relevant to your
review of Director Greg Guernsey’s decision to allow the Church to build and use the LifeAustin
Amphitheater (“the Amphitheater”) for religious assembly purposes.'

L Factual Background

The arts, and music in particular, are an essential aspect of the Church’s ministry. One of
the Church’s guiding principles is to think and act on the imaginative ideas of the Holy Spirit in
all that it does, including the expression of art, dance, drama, and music. In addition to
worshiping through songs, music is part of the way in which members of the Church prepare
their hearts and minds to hear the word and to respond to that word. The Amphitheater exists to
bring transformation to the community through the arts given by the Creator, in an outdoor
setting that brings members closer to the Creator. For this reason, each event at the
Amphitheater involving the arts is a praise and worship service. The Church also believes that
the Amphitheater and the type of modern Christian events it holds helps the Church with its
mission to bring people to the Church who likely would not come to a more traditional church.
The Amphitheater is a key component in the Church’s mission to spread its seeds of faith, See
Exhibit A, Declaration of Pastor Randy Phillips.

! A property tax exemption is prima facie evidence of religious assembly use. AUSTIN, TEX. LAND DEV. CODE § 25-
2-6(B)(41). The Church property carries the EX-XV exemption, which is the exemption code for public property,
religious organizations, charitable organizations, and other property not reported elsewhere.  See
http://propaccess.traviscad.org/clicntdbfPopupCodesDescription.aspx?CodeType—'Exemplions. Proof of the Church
(and Amphitheater’s) property tax exemption status is attached as Exhibit B,

212 Lavaca Street, Suite 200 Austin, TX 78701 512.652.5780 888.844.8441 F 512.682.2074 wshl p.com
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The Amphitheater is a project eight years in the making. The Church engaged leading
engineers and employed top-of-the-line sound mitigation measures to minimize the impact of the
Amphitheater on the surrounding neighborhoods. The finished Amphitheater has 1,000 covered
seats and available space for 500 on the hillside. Since the first event at the Amphitheater in July
2015, at all times the Church has operated the Amphitheater in compliance with the directives it
has received from the City of Austin (“the City™), as well as state and federal law, as described
more fully in detail below.

A, City Directives

Appellants® allegations of “secret meetings™ and “secret determinations” are factually
inaccurate. The land use determinations made by City staff, and particularly the one made by
Mr. Guernsey regarding the religious assembly nature of the Amphitheater, were conducted in
the ordinary course of Mr. Guemnsey’s role as Director of the Planning and Development Review
Department. While Appellants repeatedly assert that it was incumbent upon the Church to seek a
rezoning or conditional use permits, the City did not require the Church to do so.?

At all times the Church has complied with the directives of the City as it developed the
land at issue in this appeal. The Church entered into the Restrictive Covenant, attached as
Exhibit C, because the City required them to do so as a condition precedent to approving the
Church’s site development plan. See Exhibit D, Hanrahan Letter, describing the restrictive
covenant as a condition precedent to approval of a site development plan,

At the City’s direction, the Church also went through the process of applying for an
Qutdoor Music Venue Permit (“OMV Permit™). Upon review of the OMV Permit application,
however, the City indicated that the Amphitheater was not a commercial use and therefore
should operate in accordance with Section 9-2-5 of the City Code. As such, the Church
withdrew its OMV Permit application. Section 9-2-3 prohibits the Church from using sound
equipment that produces sound in excess of 75 decibels at the property line, and allows for sound
that is audible beyond the property line only between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. See

? The Court of Appeals specifically found that Mr. Guernsey had the authority to make the determinations he made,
and take the actions he took. Specifically, the Court of Appeals’ decision stated:

Section 25-2-2(A) of the land development code states that “the director of the Planning and Development
Review Department shall determine the appropriate use classification for an existing or proposed use
activity.” AUSTIN, TEX., LAND DEv. CoDg § 25-2-2(A). Here, with respect to each complained-of
activity-Guernsey’s email, the restrictive covenant, approval of the site application, or any other activity
determined to be a use classification-Guemsey had the statutory discretion to make such determinations
and/or take such actions. See id. Therefore, we hold that this claim is barred by immunity. See Saenz, 319
S.W.3d at 920.

Court of Appeals decision, p. 11. For the convenience of the BOA, the full decision of the Court of Appeals is
attached as Exhibit E. It should also be noted that the Church was not a party to this lawsuit, so its voice was
not heard by the trial court or the appellate court.



[Weh]
November 23, 2015 %\/

Page 3 |

Austin City Code § 9-2-5. Appellants do not allege that the Church has ever violated this
ordinance. To be clear, any resident of the Appellant homeowners associations could operate
amplified sound at this same level and during these same hours under the City Code. This is not
a special privilege that has been granted to the Church.

As a part of the OMV Permit process, Don Pitts, the City Music Program Manager,
conducted a sound test at the Amphitheater in June 2015. The Church maintains a state-of-the-
art sound monitoring system on its property, with sound monitors at the front of house position,
the stage left property line, and the stage right property line. Although the OMV Permit
application was withdrawn and no formal action was taken as to the application, Mr. Pitts and the
Austin Police Department produced a sound report that concluded. “As far as the requirements of
state law and city ordinance, the sound levels are significantly lower at the property line than
what is allowed.” The report further stated that the Church had gone above and beyond in its
sound mitigation efforts. The report is attached as Exhibit F. The report also noted that there
was no sound from the Amphitheater audible in the Covered Bridge neighborhood during the
test, and that sound was below allowable levels in the Hill Country Estates neighborhood, the
only Appellant found by the Court of Appeals to have the right to bring this appeal before this
Board, assuming this Board is satisfied that Hill Country Estates has standing to do so.?

The Church strongly disagrees with Appellants’ characterization that the Church has a
“penchant for disregarding City Code,” particularly when they mention only two alleged
citations in the past eight years. The Church has endeavored, and continues to endeavor, to
operate the Amphitheater pursuant to all directives that it receives from the City, including the
restrictions contained in the Restrictive Covenant and the City Code noise ordinances.

Additionally, Appellants contend that the Church should have been required to obtain a
Temporary Use Permit (“TUP™), pursuant to a potential 2013 code amendment to City Code
Section 25-2-921(C) concerning outdoor uses in residential zoning districts. Not only did the
City not pass such an amendment, but such an amendment would not have applied to the Church.

¥ The Court of Appeals held that the trial court was correct in dismissing Covered Bridge’s claims, as Covered
Bridge did not file a separate appeal related to the Church’s project. As a further, and elementary, matter, the
Church asserts that Hill Country Estates is not in the City of Austin, and does not have standing for this appeal.
AUSTIN CrTY CODE § 25-1-2(A)(1). 1t is neither in the zoning jurisdiction nor within “500 feet” of the Church’s
property to assert rights under City Code. Id. § 25-2-2(c). It is neither “immediately adjoining” nor with “200 feet”
of the Church to assert rights under Chapter 211, even if this was a zoning case, which it is not. TEX. Loc. Gov'T
CODE § 211.006(d)(2), § 211.007(c). The issue of standing to even bring this particular appeal must be determined
by the Board of Adjustment. See Court of Appeals decision, p. 14. The Church’s position, based upon the full facts,
is that Hill Country Estates lacks standing for this appeal. The City of Austin agrees with the Church’s position, as
it also raised these points in its Plea to the Jurisdiction in the trial court.

* The Church acknowledges that it has received three notices of violations from the City related, respectively, 10 its
septic system, its recycling plan, and its site plan. None of these notices involved the Amphitheater, and each was
rectified promptly after it was brought 1o the Church’s attention.
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Because the Church’s site development permit was issued in 2011, the Church likely would be
grandfathered in from a 2013 amendment.

The neighbors also contend that the Church should be required to seek a Conditional Use
Permit (“CUP”). However, the City resolution (20120412-024) and ordinance (20130228-074)
were enacted after the Church’s site development permit was issued, and therefore the Church is
grandfathered from obtaining a CUP.

B.  Operation of the Amphitheater

While Appellants make much of public statements made many years before the
Amphitheater was built, let alone operational, the relevant evidence for this Board is how the
Amphitheater is operated in practice today. The undisputed evidence is that the Church has
continuously listened to and addressed the City’s directions concerning the use and construction
of the Ainphitheater, to make sure it is in complete compliance with all City regulations. Each
event held at the Amphitheater since it began its operations in July 2015 has been for the purpose
of religious assembly. The Amphitheater is scheduled to hold approximately 20 events total in
2015, for an average of 3.33 events per month. All of these teligious assembly events have been
operated in compliance with City directives. City Code, and the Restrictive Covenant,

The Church does not use the Amphitheater for commercial, for-profit events and operates
in full compliance with the Restrictive Covenant.’ See Exhibit G, Declaration of John Capezzuti.
The Restrictive Covenant allows the Church to collect money from ticketed events only for the
purpose of covering its own operating expenses. See Exhibit C, Restrictive Covenant, at [.D.
(“Except for occasional charitable events . . . [t]icketed events may charge only nominal fees to
cover utilities, maintenance, and other administrative and operational expenses.”). The Church
reads the Restrictive Covenant to prohibit use of the Amphitheater for commercial, for-profit
events.

Many of the events at the Amphitheater are free to the public, with the Church paying the
costs for artists to appear. When the Church has an event for which a ticket is necessary, ticket
proceeds generally are to the benefit of the performing artist, the artist’s booking agent, and/or
the third-party ticket vendor. The nominal fees the Church receives as the result of ticket sales
rarely cover even the Amphitheater’s operating expenses. Again, the Church is allowed to
recoup its utilities, maintenance, and other administrative and operational expenses pursuant to
the Restrictive Covenant.

% The Church questions Appellants’ ability to contest the Restrictive Covenant, as that document is a contract
between the City and the Church to which Appeliants are not a party and are not beneficiaries. Additionally, the
Restrictive Covenant makes clear that it can be “modified, amended, or terminated only by joint action of both
(a} the Director of the Planning and Development Review Department of the City of Austin, and (b) all of the
Owners of the Property at the time of the modification, amendment or termination.” Exhibit C, Restrictive
Covenant, at [V.D.
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In sum, the Church operates the Amphitheater no differently than the Main Worship
Center building itself. The Amphitheater holds the same types of events as would be held in the
Main Worship Center, but in a different building on the Church’s property. The Amphitheater is
the Church. Mr. Guemsey has previously determined that this is an acceptable religious
assembly use, and his determination is supported not only by City Code, but also by the
applicable state and federal laws that govern the use of land for religious assembly purposes.

II. Applicable State and Federal Law Concerning Religious Land Use.

The Amphitheater presents a special case for this Board’s review because it involves
religious land use. State and federal law contemplate protections for religious assembly that are
much broader than the City Code definition. To the extent City law conflicts with those state and
federal provisions, the state and federal provisions control.

A. The Texas Religious Freedom Restoration Act

The Texas Religious Freedom Restoration Act (“TRFRA™) provides that “a government
agency may not substantiaily burden a person’s free exercise of religion” unless the government
agency can show that the application of the burden furthers “a compelling government interest”
and is also “the least restrictive means of furthering that interest.” Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem Code
§ 110.003. “Free exercise of religion™ is defined as “an act or refusal to act that is substantially
motivated by sincere religious belief” /d. § 110.001(a)(1). “[I]t is not necessary to determine
that the act or refusal to act is motivated by a central part or central requirement of the person’s
sincere religious belief.” /d.

A municipality of the state of Texas, such as the City of Austin, and a board of
municipality, such as the Board of Adjustment, each qualify as a “government agency,” and
therefore are prohibited from imposing substantial burdens on free exercise. /d. § 110.001(2).
TRFRA applies to any ordinance, rule, order, decision, practice, or other exercise of
governmental authority and to any act of a government agency in granting or refusing to grant a
government benefit to an individual. /d. § 110.002,

The Texas Supreme Court interpreted TRFRA for the first time in Barr v. City of Sinton,
295 S5.W.3d 287, 300 (Tex. 2009). The Court’s analysis sets forth four questions for a court’s
consideration when a violation of TRFRA is alleged: (1) Does the ordinance or action in
question burden the free exercise of religion? (2) Is the burden substantial? (3) Does the
ordinance further a compelling government interest? and (4) Is the ordinance the least restrictive
means of furthering that interest? /d. at 299. The Barr decision is attached as Exhibit H.
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1. Free Exercise

At the outset, it is important to note that the City has already determined that the
Amphitheater is for the purpose of religious assembly. Moreover, courts generally will not
question the sincerity of particular religious beliefs, because, as the United States Supreme Court
has repeatedly stated, “[i]t is not within the judicial ken to question the centrality of particular
beliefs or practices to a faith, or the validity of particular litigants’ interpretations of those
creeds.” £mp. Div., Dep't of Human Res. v. Smith, 494 U.S. 872, 887 (1990) (citation omitted).
Only Appellants contend that religious freedom is not at issue here, and only with reference to
the City Code’s strict definition of what constitutes “religious assembly.” TRFRA, however.
contemplates protections for free exercise that are much broader than what City Code allows.

2. Substantial Burden

In the Barr case, Plaintiff Pastor Rick Barr offered housing and religious instruction to
men recently released from prison in two homes he owned in the City of Sinton. Barr, 295
S.W.3d at 290. In response to this activity, the city passed an ordinance that effectively banned
Barr’s ministry from the city. /d. The city argued that Barr’s frec excrcise was not involved
because a halfway house need not be a religious operation, but the Court rejected that argument,
noting that “the fact that a halfway house can be secular does not mean that it cannot be
religious.” Id. at 300 (emphasis in original). Here too, just because an amphitheater can be
secular does not mean that the Church’s Amphitheater cannot be religious.

The Court went on to define “substantial” as having two basic components: “real vs.
merely perceived, and significant vs. trivial.” Id. at 301. “[Tlhe focus is on the degree to which
a person’s religious conduct is curtailed and the resulting impact on his religious expression.”
Id. The burden is measured from the perspective of the person and not the government agency.
Id. Because the ordinance at issue in the Barr- case ended Barr’s ministry as a practical matter,
the Court concluded that the ordinance substantially burdened Barr's free exercise. /d.

The Court further noted that “a burden on a person’s religious exercise is not
insubstantial simply because he could always choose to do something else.” Id. at 303.
Additionally, nothing in TRFRA suggests that an individual must be cited or charged with a
crime under a challenged law in order to establish that the burden on his free exercise imposed
by that law is substantial. /d. Finally, “[a] restriction need not be completely prohibitive to be
substantial; it is enough that alternatives for the religious exercise are severely restricted.” /d. at
305.

Subsequent to the decision in Barr, the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals decided the case of
Merced v. Klasson, 577 F.3d 578 (5th Cir. 2009). A copy of this decision is attached as Exhibit
L. In Merced, a combination of city ordinances forbid the keeping and slaughter of four-legged
animals within its borders, a ban that resulted in preventing practitioners of the Santeria faith
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from performing ceremonies essential to their religion. Id. at 581. Plaintiff Jose Merced was a
Santeria priest who for sixteen years regularly preformed ritualistic animal sacrifices on his
residential property in accordance with his faith, and challenged the ordinances as substantial
burdens to his free exercise. Id. at 582,

The court in the Merced case noted that “at a minimum, the government’s ban of conduct
sincerely motivated by religious belief substantially burdens an adherent’s free exercise of that
religion.” Id. at 590. “The relevant inquiry is . . . whether the regulations substantially burden a
specific religious practice.” Jd. at 591. While Merced could still perform some Santeria
ceremonies, the city’s ordinances wholly prevented him from performing the particular
ceremony necessary to initiate a Santeria priest. /d. Because the ordinances amounted to a
complete ban of this specific religious practice, the court found that they substantially burdened
Merced’s free exercise rights. fd. As in Merced, any atlempt to completely ban the religious
activities that occur in the Amphitheater would amount to a substantial burden of the Church’s
free exercise of religion.

Appellants’ interpretation of City Code would substantially burden on the Church’s free
exercise of religion. Reversal of the land use dctermination, the site plan approval, the
Restrictive Covenant, or the building permit could have effect of ending the Church’s use of the
Amphitheater, a complete ban on religious assembly. Similarly, the arduous process of rezoning
would work a severe restriction on the Church’s right to free exercise and completely ban that
exercise until the rezoning was obtained. Any requirement of seeking a temporary or conditional
use permit for each event also would substantiaily burden Church’s free exercise, and would
unnecessarily burden City resources for a use the City has already approved. In short, each of
Appellants’ desired outcomes amounts to a substantial burden on the Church’s free exercise

rights.
3. Compelling Government Interest

The Church does not argue that because the Amphitheater is used for religious assembly
the Church has carte blanche to use the Amphitheater however and whenever the Church sees fit.
The City of Austin can regulate the Amphitheater, and indeed has done so. But under the law,
the City’s regulation must be in furtherance of a compelling government interest and must be the
least restrictive means of furthering that interest.

The Texas Supreme Court made clear in Barr that because free exercise is a fundamental
right, a “compelling interest” can only be found in “interests of the highest order,” and only to
“avoid the gravest abuses that endanger paramount interests.” Barr, 295 S.W.3d at 306 (citation
omitted). “[Clourts must look beyond broadly formulated interests justifying the general
applicability of government mandates and scrutinize the asserted harm of granting specific
exemptions to particular religious claimants.” Id. (citation and internal punctuation omitted).
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For example, in the Barr case, the city argued that the ordinance in question served a
compelling interest in advancing safety, preventing nuisance, and protecting children. /d. at 307.
The Court, however, noted no evidence supported the city’s assertion that the halfway houses
presented a safety problem, nuisance, or threat to children, particularly in light of Barr's
testimony that he only accepted nonviolent offenders. /d.

Assuming without conceding here that the City has a compelling interest in regulating the
Amphitheater, the City is, in fact, regulating the Amphitheater. The City required the Church to
enter into the Restrictive Covenant, which limits the types of events it may hold, and the City
requires the Church to adhere to Section 9-2-5 of the City Code with respect to the allowed
decibel levels and operating hours. The question then becomes whether these regulations are the
least restrictive means of furthering these interests.

Additionally, the City has never asserled that it has a compelling interest in keeping
religious assembly indoors, as Appellants contend. Appellants offer no support whatsocver for
their assertion that “[a]llowing outdoor religious worship on any residential lot is likely to lead to
situations where people with differing religious beliefs would interact and potentially conflict.”
For its part, the City has made no distinction between religious assembly that occurs indoors and
religious assembly that occurs outdoors, and Appellants’ strained interpretation of City Code
should not be allowed to replace the judgment of City officials. 1t is hard to imagine that the
City would ever create a precedent that would prohibit outdoor church services, such as Easter
services, sunrisc prayer services, or tent revivals. It is also hard to imagine how or why the City
would begin to regulate the kinds of religious assembly that would be allowed outdoors and the
kinds of religious assembly that would be prohibited outdoors.

4. Least Restrictive Means

The last inquiry under the Barr test requires the City to show not only that its conduct is
narrowly tailored to combat the compelling interest it has identified, but also that it is using the
least restrictive means possible to do so. See Merced, 577 F.3d at 594 (“TRFRA requires the
least restrictive means, not merely less than a complete ban.”); Barr, 295 S.W.3d at 308
(“TRFRA requires that even when the government acts in furtherance of compelling interest, it
must show that it used the least restrictive means of furthering that interest.”). For example, in
the Merced case, the court found that the city was not using the least restrictive means because
Merced was able to propose “no fewer than three less restrictive alternatives.” Merced, 577 F.3d
at 595.

None of Appellants’ proposals meet this least restrictive means test. Instead. as discussed
above, Appellants’ proposals amount 1o a complete ban of the Church’s protected religious
activity. Appellants are clearly aware of the TRFRA standards, as they mention TRFRA more
than once in their briefing. But Appellants do not even attempt to argue that the outcomes
Appellants suggest are the least restrictive means of allowing the Church to engage in protected
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religious activity, While the current restrictions may not be the least restrictive means of
allowing the Church to engage in protecicd activity, they certainly are somewhat tailored to
addressing Appellants’ concerns. The Board therefore should reject this appeal.

B. The Federal Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act

Two provisions of the Federal Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act
(“RLUIPA™) are relevant the Board’s review. The first, entitied “substantial burdens,” imposes
the same standard of review on land use regulations that TRFRA imposes, as discussed above.
Compare 42 U.S.C. § 2000cc(a)(1) with Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem Code § 110.003. This portion of
RLUIPA would apply with equal force here, but is not discussed further in light of the overlap.

The second section of RLUIPA, entitled “discrimination and exclusion,” contains three
subsections. The third subsection prohibits imposition or implementation of a land use
regulation that “totally excludes religious assemblies from a jurisdiction” or “unreasonably limits
religious assemblies, institutions, or structures within a jurisdiction.” Id. § 2000cc(b}(3)(A)-(B).

Under RLUIPA, a “land use regulation” is “a zoning or landmarking law, or the
application of such a law, that limits or restricts a claimant’s use or development of land.” Id.
§ 2000cc-5(5). “Religious exercise™ is defined to include “any exercise of religion, whether or
not compelled by, or central to, a system of religious belief.” Id. § 2000cc-5(7)(A). RLUIPA
further provides that it “shall be construed in favor of a broad protection of religious exercise, to
the maximum extent permitted by the terms of this chapter and the Constitution.” Here,
RLUIPA would apply to any application of the City’s zoning or land use laws to the extent they
limit or restrict the Church’s use of its land.

RLUIPA does not define “jurisdiction,” but at least one federal court in Texas has
concluded that “[a]s applied to a land use regulation like a zoning ordinance, ‘jurisdiction’
logically refers to the geographical area covered by [the] ordinance.” Elijah Grp., Inc. v. City of
Leon Valley, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 92249, at *28 (W.D. Tex. Oct. 2. 2009). Since a city’s
zoning ordinance applies to the entire city, in the context of a zoning ordinance, “jurisdiction”
means “city.” Id.

Appellants® interpretations of the applicable regulations would amount to an
unreasonable limitation on the Church’s religious assemblies. As discussed above, Appellants
suggest only altematives that would end religious assembly at the Amphitheater altogether or
would substantially limit the Church’s ability to engage in free exercise of religion at the
Amphitheater. This unreasonable resuit cannot stand under RLUIPA. Appellants’ appeal should
be rejected for this additional reason.
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II1. Conclusion

The City allowed the Church to build the Amphitheater, correctly recognizing that the
Amphitheater is for religious assembly purposes. The Church, pursuant to its legal and
constitutional rights and in reliance upon the City’s representations and contractual promises,
built the Amphitheater at great expense. Since its opening, the Church has used the
Amphitheater for religious assembly purposes. The Church has also gone above and beyond in
its sound mitigation efforts to minimize the impact of its religious assembly events on
Appellants. Moreover, the Church has followed each directive from the City regarding use of
the Amphitheater, including entering in to the Restrictive Covenant and adhering to the
applicable noise ordinance contained in the City Code.

Any further restrictions by the City on the Church’s ability to use the Amphitheater, over
and above the current restrictions and Restrictive Covenant, may cause the City to violate state
and federal law, as well as the Texas and United States Constitutions. Freedom of religion, and
the laws that protect this freedom, are in many respects some of the most important laws in our
country. These laws were previously recognized by the City. Appellants’ efforts, if sustained,
could infringe on the laws that protect the fundamental rights that are essential to the fabric of
ouir great nation. Attached to this letter as Exhibit J are several letters from supporters of the
Amphitheater, attesting to its religious assembly purpose. Also attached as Exhibit K is a copy
of a petition the Church circulated and approximately 450 signatures, as well as individual
comments, gathered in support of the Amphitheater.

The Church asks that this Board reject Appellants’ appeal and affirm each action of the
City with respect to the Amphitheater. Please feel free to contact me, should you have any
further questions.

Sincerely,
e /_...__/-::-:—""'—‘

Geoffrey D. Weisbart

Enclosures



MEMORANDUM OF SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This is a memorandum of a mediated settlement agreement, intended by the parties to comply
with §154.071 TCPRC, entered into between Covered Bridge POA and Hill Country Estates
Homeowners Association (the "HOAs"), and LifeAustin Church ("LA"), respecting all current

disputes.

1. Substantive provisions:

A,

C.

LA to construct and implement sound mitigation improvements and plan (the “Plan”)
as described in the Idibri report, attached, and with a front of house operational limit
of 95 dba (99 dba backstop for accidental, unintended spikes; details as to dba tbd);
to be designed and constructed using “best commercially available” design choices
and materials to achieve best possible sound reduction.

The HOAs shall verify that the Plan is as described in the Idibri report and this
agreement, Mechanism to share information and discuss Plan tbd. Mediate disputes

regarding Plan.

Events at the amphitheater (as currently constructed - no agreements made or implied
as to future expansion) shall have no more than 1800 persons (staff included) in
attendance. No significant amplified outdoor events on premises except in
amphitheater. Plan to be used for all amphitheater events.

Amphitheater hours/numbers: 10:00 p.m. event cutoff, except 9:00 p.m. on all
Sundays and Mon-Wed school nights, per AISD calendar. LA has 4 “wildcards”
annually to use Mon-Wed school nights to allow 9:30 cutoff. Limit of 52 “concert-
type” musical or theatrical events per year. LA will post monthly on Next Door (or
equivalent) a list or link to a list of amphitheater events - time and date- for the
following month.

Enforcement mechanism:  TBD Attorneys to meet with Brent Lloyd.

Upon construction and implementation of the Plan (except for completion of the
Chapel), all BOA appeals and suit against CoA to be dropped. Settlement binds
HOA representatives (Kleeman, Kirk, Dabbert and Butler) personally (no common-
law suit against LA; evidence of individual HOA reps’ execution not to be used as
evidence of reasonableness, but no restriction on HOA’s execution as evidence).

All attorneys’ fees and costs will be borne by the parties as they were incurred.

2. On or before 8/31/2016, the parties will enter into a formal compromise and settlement
agreement reflecting the terms hereof. Initial drafis of the settlement documents will be prepared
by the attorney for LA, subject to the reasonable approval of attorneys for the other parties.

3. The parties agree to reconvene the mediation if a dispute arises regarding the further
documentation, conclusion or performance of this settlement (but this provision does not imply that
this agreement is not otherwise enforceable according to its terms).

Executed: July 28, 2016

[signatures on next page]
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Note there are many factors that impact sound propagation from fhwau'e’fo the

T

Association propertias such as: e
P

o varied atmospheric and weather conditions. __;,-,:a"*‘

venue aftendance. Grealer seat filf will g_e,neré]’ly correspond to reduced sound

leaving the venue. T .
a  parking lot fill. Grealer parlglr_zg;!df?ﬁl will generally diffuse sound ascaping the venue

which contributes to [fym?}"fions at property line.
e _ " W-\?
2 Measured dB(A). reférrers to dB(A) Leqg with a 15-minute interval. The time interval, /

M In . weightin%?anﬂfeq meastrement technique were selected lo malch The City of Austin
77 VL / Logged [Jala ie inq repods.and.is-consistent-with aur understanding of their
‘ ~Basuremant technigue used for Code Enforcement.

o

o

e arrional Sound Mitigation Improvements

The following Additional Improvements to the venue, which we understand have been offered by
LifeAustin Church, have been assumed:

o Re-aim and xitipg Hes line array speakers lo minimize sound
. ved seating aréas, This is a change from the original design which

outside of the

included coverage into the grassy open seating area. _
o Addwest Q%ousticaliy optimized” sound screen per Exhibit 2 and 3. The '
architecturally-integrated sound screen would be a minimum of 1 foot above the

stage right speaker array and 1 foot below xiting west sound wall louver. The
sound screen would be an adaptatiof_of an MBI or eguivalent prmges[gned to

absorb and deflect sound using materials Suitable for all wa%er_gzpns e.
o South exposure - Replace car head light fence screen witlT MBI weather redistant
exterior panels or similar for noise control

South exposure — Add more bushes and trees all along existing oramental fence
o South exposure ~ Add new Chapel per Exhibit 4

s East exposure - @d single layer treated fabric sound screen per attached Exhibit 2.

The sound screen wou T foot above the stage left speaker array and 1 foot

below the lop of the exiting stone wall. (Sound screen would be a @
T Ulizing MBS oF Simiat ewgyj\
e edicted Sound Levels following the Additiohal Impioye '
Predicted sound levels al west and east property lines aresshd M per Exhibit 5 plot and are as
. G
follows: A
et

S
Property line west of t_l;_g,,amﬁlﬁeater - 58 to 64dB(A). Under well-defined acoustic
principles, this ;gpr‘é'sf'enls a 30-55% reduction from existing and a 70-85% reduction from

levels g.llewéﬂ"t;y the City of Austin.

LIFEAUSTIN | 07.25.2016 ﬁiz

CONFIDENTIAL=—-FOR PURPQOSES OF MEDIATION OMLY |
/44./
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CITY OF AUSTIN
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING - INTERPRETATION

DECEMBER 9, 2015

o —— D S D P S e e e e S G S S S e e o e S P S o g e e et ek e

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this the 9th day of
December 2015, between 7:03 p.m. and 10:15 p.m., the
above-entitled matter came on for hearing at the City
of Austin Council Chambexs, 301 West 2nd Street, Austin,
Texas before Mr. William Burkhardt, Chair, and the

following proceedings were reported by David Bateman,

Certified Shorthand Reporter.

Mot T
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Page 2 Page 4
1 BOARD MEMBERS 1 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thonk you. Do we havea
2 2 motion for executive session?
3 Mr. William Burkhardt (Chair) 3 MS. HAWTHORNE: 1 like to make a motion
4 Ms. Melissa Hawthome ('V ice Chair) 4 that we go into executive session.
5 Ms. Brooke Ba.iley 5 CHAR BURKHARDT: Do we hove a second?
6 Mr. Michael Benaglio 6  Allriph
¥i Mz, Eric Goff 7 MS, NESLUND: Sccond.
8 Mr. Don Leighton-Burwell 8 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Cotntnissioncr -
9 Ms. Melissa Neslhud 5  Commissioner Hawthorne makes the motion for executive
1o Mr, James Valadez 10  session. Commissioner Neslund makes the second.
11 Mr. Michael Von Ohlen 11 MR. KLEEMAN: Mr. Chairman, 1 was not
12 12 gware this was posted for executive session. I dido't
13 13 secit on the agenda. |
14 14 MS. HAWTHORNE: We arc going to get advice
15 15 fomour—~
16 . 16 MR KLEEMAN: Chair -
17 17 MS. BAWTHORNE: -- altorncy.
18 18 MR. KLEEMAN: But you're not posted for
19 19 it
20 20 MR, LLOYD: Brent Lloyd, assistant city
21 21 attorney. Under the Open Meetings Act we — the board
22 22 oracommission or the counsel has legal authority to go
23 23 inlo execulive session regarding any item that is posted
24 24 onthe agenda.
25 25 MR. KLEEMAN: Okay, Because therc's -
Page 3 Page 5
1 PROCEEDINGS 1 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Ifyou'd be good enough
2 CHAIR BURKHARDT: We're going to call the 2 o state your name for —
3 meeting to order. ‘The time is 7:03 p.m. and there is a 3 MR. KLEEMAN: My name is —
4 quorum present. [ presunite all the board members have 4 CHAIR BURKHARDT: -~ the record?
5  made - signed the sign-in sheet and a couple of H MR. KLEEMAN: — Robert Kleeman, I'm here
6  reminders to the audience tonight. & onbehalf of the appellants. Since there’s also -
7 Please put - turn your cell phones off 7 we're here as a result of twee years of litigation  ~
8 or--or put them on vibrate. Any discussions I'd Hke 8 for the record I need to preserve my objection to yall
9 you to take them fnto the fobby. It's going to be noisy 9  pgoing in execulive session.
10  inbere crough and we want to be able to hear everyone 10 CHAIR BURKHARDT; Your ohjection is noted.
11  speak 11 All right, If youll call the roll for
12 When -- if any of you or when you are 12 the execulive session, please?
13 addressing the board or make a comment, please ek it 13 MS. HELDENFELS: Brooke Bailey?
14 to the board and not to one another, To do that you'll 14 MS. BAILEY: Yes.
15  need ko come to the dais, announce yourself and speak 1s MS. HELDENFELS: Michael Benaglio?
16  when — when the - when the — when the peried for -- is MR. BENAGLIO: Yes,
17 for public comment is onnounced and you have signed up 17 MS. HELDENFELS: William Burkhard(?
18  to spenk during that period of time. 1B CHAIR BURKHARDT: Yes.
19 I'm going to administer the oath now. And 19 MS, HELDENFELS: Eric Goff?
20  I'd like cveryone who is going to give testimony toright 20 MR. GOFF: Yes.
21  ipstand and take the oath. 21 MS. IIELDENFELS: Melissa Hawthome?
22 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 22 MS. HAWTHORNE: Yes.
23 testimony you will give tonight will be true and correct 23 MS. HELDENFELS: Don Leighton-Burwel:?
24 o the best of your knowledge? 24 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Yes.
25 (Audience confinns) 25 MS. HELDENFELS: Melissa Neslund?
e rre— T T T ==

ken@kenowen.com * www.kenowen.com
800.829.6936 * 512.472.0880

(Pages 2 to 5)
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MS. NESLUND: Yes,

MS. HELDENFELS: James Valadez?

MR. VALADEZ: Yes.

MS. HELDENFELS: Michael Von Ohlen?

MR. VON OHLEN: Yes.

CHAIR BURKBARDT: Allright. Allright.
The board — the Board of Adjusiment will go into
executive session lo receive advice from counsel
pursuant to Section 3507 -- point 071 of the Open
Meetings Act regard to the following iterm. That iz Cese
No. C15-2015-0147.

Board will now go to executive session.

(Executive session 7:06 p.m, to 7:50 p.m.)

CHATR BURKHARDT: All right, We'll
reconvene the public hearing. Time is 7:50.

I'd like to give you-all an idea of how
wec're going to proceed tonight, And what we will be -
will be doing will be having a report from — from the
city staff director, Greg Guernsey. That will be 10
minutes.

Then there will be a presentation from
the - by the appealing party and that will be lead
represeniative Robert Kleeman. And that will be 20
minutes, We will then have testimony of persons in
support of the appeal. And we will limit those to 10
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Division | Appeals, These code sections contain
infonnation regarding the standands for hearing and
deciding on appeal. Please note, however, that the
format zct — sct forth above supplements the generl
provision in Section 25.1.19] regarding the conduct of o
public hearing,

And then finally, tonight we're going lo
need a vote of seven to - to averfurn the appeal,
overturn Lhe finding on the case to uphold for the —
for the sppellant. And that will be 75 perceat of all
appointed and qualified board members. Again, that will
be a vote of seven to — to sustain the rppeal.

Again, pleasc don't — please, if you have
questions nfter the hearing, contact the board [iaison
Leane Heldenlels, not the board members.

Okay. And with that let's get started.

MR. GUERNSEY: Good cvening, chair and
members of the Board of Adjustnent. My nane's Greg
Guemsey. I'm the director of the Planning & Zoning
Department. [ was previously the direclor of the
Planning & Development Review Department,

In response to the appeal this evening the
director or 1 was authotized by the code to clessify
proposed land uses within the use classifications in the
Land Development Code. Thesc uses that are looked at

VO O NN e W R
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minutes,
Then we will lave a presentation by the
LifeAustin Church. And that — their lead

_ represeniatives will be Geoff Weisbart or Steve Metcalfe

and that will be again 20 minutes. Then we will have
testimony by persons in opposilion to the appeal.

Then we will hove a rebuttal by the
appealing party's lead representative, And that will be
five minutes.

Agnin, please address your comunents to the
board, not to other parties or to the siaff, Please be
respectfid of the staff and the board.

Again, the board will -- the board may ask
questions of -- of any of the parties that — that come
before us, Please be mindful of the time limits and the
decorum that we'd like to have.

‘There is a prohibition on ex parie
contacts. The board's rules as deference please --
excuse me. And in deference to ils quasi judicial role
please do not contact the board — members of the board
or address them regarding this outside the hearing
lonight,

There is a cade provision on -- on
appeals. And the general provision on asdministrative
appeals may be found in City Code Chopter 25.1 Articke 7
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are looked at for the proposed use, similarities to

other defined uses as they stand. Land use
classification is important because it would determine
whether a use is permitted or prohibited or allowed s a
conditional use that may be spproved by the Land Use
Commission.

I'm oot going to talk tonight about sound
amplification permits. That's done by a different
department. They've deemed this to be a residential use
subject to those restrictions. We're oot going lo tatk
about othier appents that might be coming before you
perhaps later in the month of next month or possibly
alicged code violntions that may have occurred on this
proparty,

Use detenninations are usually requested
by a property owner, They arc done sometimes with an
application. My authority is delegated to the other
depariment, Development Service Departinent or to my
staff. As on application comes in and somebody wants to
build a house, they will get a permit for the house. If
they've decined it ns o house, theyll opprove that
pennit and apply the applicable codes.

There are — sometimes there are uses that
rmay be similar but the property owmer before they make
the investinent of drawing up detailed site plans which

—
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1 may couse —cost several thousands of dollars and time 1 aschool or a church or day care to cite civic uses ~
2 and cffort and aiso draw up details such as building 2 that they would require a conditional use permit if they
3 plans well ask a question whether or not — what a 3 exceeded a limitation of 50 occupancy.
4  particular use is. 1 So let me speak to the responsc to the
5 These use determinations in the past -- 5 appeal. Staff disagrees that there’s a reasonable doubt
€  and I'm really speaking to the determinations that were 6 difference to the interpretation of the specific infent
7  done previously under the codes that existed when this 7 of the regulations dealing with a religious asscmbly
8  appeal was originally brought -- were done by 8  use. Fundamentally what it boils down to a disagreement
9 correspondence cither by e-mail, by wriften, by verbal, 9 that the outdoor amphitheater is part of religious
10 They're done by my staft or they're done in this 10  assembly use and that of an outdoor entertainment or
11 panticular case by me, 11 recreational use.
12 City council did amend the code in 2010 to 12 1 did consider infonnation that was
13 provide a cedain public notico requirement. i does 13 submitted by them. 1did converse with my staft. 1
14 notapply in this particwlar case. But they did act to 14 even talked to stoff that would be part of the gite plan
18  change the code as it applies to certain use 15  section and the zone section. The definition ofa
16 determinations. No public notice was requiced and the 16 religious nssembly use speaks to a regulas organized
17  nolice that was given was really only given to the 17  religions worship or religious education in @ permanent
18 applicant, which was standmd course of procedure, the 18 ortempormy building. It excludes primary — primary,
19  normsal course of business and how the depariment, tyself 19  sccondary education facilitics, community recreation
20  oranyone else in — in my department would act. 20 facilitics, day care facilities, packing facilities and
21 The Board of Adjustment has the legal 21 isa - tax exempt is prima facie evidence of religious
22 authority o hear appeals, produce determination, has 22 asscinbly usc.
23 upheld them, reversed them, modified them in the past, 23 The use is petmitted, a religious assembly
24 Sothis is not the first sodeo, although it might be the 24 use, in RR rural residential district. [ deemed this Lo
25  first rodeo for some of you that you're appealing, 25  bea permancnt use, ot a temporary use. The building
Page 11 Page 13
1 Regarding the 2008 LifeAustin or 1 that the nmphitheater is housed is a building, required
2  PromiseLand appeal itself in twenty — on December 17, 2 abuilding permit, bas encloscl spaces, not o temporary
3 2008, Mr. Carl Conley, the agent for PromiseLand West 3 structure. The code inakes a distinetion tatking not so
4 Church, came to me with & request for a use 4 much about enclased but actually talking about a
5 dctermination. The essence of that is that Mr. Conley 5  building,
6  described the property a 3,500 indoor multiuse facility, 6 There were some references o outdoor
7  achapel and associated amphitheater building with a 7  sound amplification that were brought to you brought
8  smaller 1000-seat capacity amphitheater, 8  about by the appellants. As I said, ['m not going to
9 1t was atated to me in the conversation by 9  address those. This is really about a zoning use
10  e-mail and by phone that it would be for the same uses 20 determination.
11 that would take place within the 3500-scat multipurpose 11 ‘There's also some references to
12  building, which is in essence the sanctuary building 12 subcategories of building permits which really deals
13 would be the cxact same activitics that would take place 13 with Census Burcou determination of a typeof a
14  inthe amphitheater. 14 building.
15 [ made a response back the day before the 18 Staff also disagrees there's a reasonable
16 holiday, city holiday, and said that the use wosa 16  doubt ordifference in interpretations of specific
17 permitted use, | deemed it to be a part of a primary 17  regulations relating to the procedures of Gling of the
18 use, not an accessory in this case and considered it 18 oppeal of ndministrative decision. ‘The decision that [
19 religious assentbly based on the information I had. 19 made was appealable for 20 days. Normally that is done
20  Pemnits were issued following that decision for both a 20 by the applicant.
21 site plan and related building permits. 21 As I said, the ondinances changed. They
22 The city council in 2013 did pass an 22 don't necessarly apply in this particular case. But
23 amendment fo the code to deal with amphitheater 23 when the sitc plan and the building permils came forward
24 buildings to say, if they were associated with certain 24 they were basically in accordance with that erigiont
25  residential uses or civic uses -- which I guess could be 25  detenmination. Now it was donc by common practice, As
Ee— Y= v — o= v o T T T e ey
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Page 14 Page 1&
1 [said, it was allowed by ordinance and that's what I 1 not unccmmon for religious assembly uses (o be qutside.
2 gcted upon, 2  Weddings lake place outside, sunrise services maybe
3 This memorandum that [ gave you that's in 3 pethaps on Faster take place outside. Other religous
4 your backup does not address issues subsequent to 4 assembly take place oulside, Easter egg bunis. Trick,
5 litigation by the city and the applicants. The case 5 trunk or iteat aclivities would also take place. |
6  is—it's my understanding that this did not nddress [ 1just very quickly went through and jost
7  religious assembly land use issue or decide on the 7 Goopled olher activities that lake place on churches
8  specific question whether or not the applicanis had met 8  both in Oak Hill and owside. The - some of these
9  the 20-day deadline. 9 include galleries for Austin Socicty of Pastels, |
10 Staff believes that the determination 10 Austins Civic Women's Ensemble, Austin Symphony, Austin
11 would clearly permit this use and character enumerated 11 Chamber Music. There are church masier meetings.
12 in other various zones and objectives. And in this 12 I guess Il pause here. If you guys have
13  zone, as | said, this is a permanent structure, the 13  any other questions, I've got an additional list and you
14  amphitheater structure. It's used for religious 14 can read my closing comments in my backup.
15 assembly use. 15 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Afl right. Thank you,
16 It takes place ona — on a very large 16 MR. GUERNSEY: Mine's only six and o half
17  tractof land, 53 acres. [don't think it -- they 17 pages as opposed to the other documents that are large
18 included all the land that 1 think they own, which is 18  hinders.
19 68, It occupies less than three percent building 19 CHAIR BURKHARDT: We will have questions.
20 coverage on all this land area and less than 14 percent 20 But what Td like to ask of the board is that we go on
21  impervious cover. That's substantially less than what 21 and listen 1o oll the presentations, And then we'll
22  you'll find on some of the other developed residential 22 take questions nbout anybody thet's come before us.
23  tracts in the area. 23 MR. GUERNSEY: Thank you.
24 The scale is not necessarily out of the 24 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Okay. Thauk you.
25  nom for a tract of 53 acres given the buildings that 25 MR. KLEEMAN: Good evening. My name's
S
Page 15 Page 17
1  areproposed on this property. Ifit was smaller in 1 Robert Kleeman. I'm kere on behalf of the appellants.
2 scaleon a 5.3 acre site, you might have a church 2 First of ell, [ wont to thank you for holding this
3 building of same proportion of 350 seats and an outdoor 3 special called mecting to hear this very imporlant
4 mmphitheater of a hundred seats, 4  appesls.
5 Staff does not have the luxury really to 5 And 1do apologize for the breadth of the
6  approve or deny ¢ use determination or an application 6  docuwmentation. Bui about 80 percent of that was
7 just merely on the size of a project. We have to comply 7 generated aRer the staff refused to forward our appeals
8 with those codes, Staff believes that this -- the 8  to yallin October 2011 as a result of three and a half
9  previcus inlerpretation that Tmade does not grant 8  years ol litigation that we're here.
10 special privilege that's inconsistent to other similatly 10 At this time I do offer into evidence the
11 situated properties. 11 red binder that 1 gave you. Its the same information
12 As | said, this is a pcrmancnt building. 12 that's been online in addition to the written testimony
13  Tiis deemed to be a religious assembly use. It wos 13  that youw've just been handed,
14 proposed, shown on site plans. There was restrictive 14 Just for clarification on the record, the
15 covenant offered that T accepted. It was part of that 15  permits for this property are actually held in the name
16 process thot —- actually, by nature restrictive covenant 16 of PromiseLand West, Inc. And we will refer to it gs
17 s in making further restrictions on their property in 17  LifeAustin for simplicity sake. That's mercly a
18  this case to clacify the use although we did have 18 rcbranding of this church and its operations.
19 restrictions on parking and also had requirements on 19 So the key questions for this appeals
20  traffic impact analysis, 20  are - first one is is there - does (he zoning code
21 The definition of prima facie speaks to 21 prohibit outdoor nssembly in the RR zoning district. We
22  evidence of being o religious assembly use. They nre 22  think the answer is clearly yes.
23 toax exempt, They have been tax exempl ait the way back 23 The next question is is there an exemption
24 tothe original use determination. 24 within the code that somehow religious assembly is not
25 Finally, I just want to state that it's 25  subject 1o the broad prohibition of cutdoor assembly in
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RR zoning district.

Next one is, if you decide that (here is
an excmption or some other ambiguity in the code that
authorizes Mr. Guernsey's decision, then you get into
the question of what activities constitute religious
assembly.

And then the final question is can staff’
issue pennits for usc that's not permitted in a
particutar zoning districk. T think the answer to that
is ro, they cannot.

So we're asking to reverse the land use
determinations that outdoor religious assembly is a
principal use under religious assembly in the RR zoning
district, that an outdoor amphitheater is a principal
use under religious assembly, and that musicsl and
theatrical performances, benefits, festivals, community
cvents and other similar ticket cvents arc part of
religious asscmbly.

We also ask that you reverse the site plan
SP-2011-185C as it pertains to the outdoor amphitheater
onty. We also want you to reverse the approval of
Article | of the Restrictive Cavenant -- this is the
language that expands the definition of activilies
allowed under religious assembly -- and the initial
building permit that was issued,
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would require a zoning change or conditional use permit,
that there had been no previous outdoor amphithealer
approved administiatively and an outdoor amphitheater is
not a recognized accessory usc.
So let's get to the meat of the matter,
Section 25-2-92{(C) which is in the zoning code, is very
clear. An outdoor public, religious, patriotic, or
historic assembly or exhibit, including a festival,
benefit, fundraising event or similar use that typically
attracts a mass audience inay be permitted as a temporary
use under this division if it's in a district of SF4 or
less restrictive,
‘This is important. The siatement says —
the code says that in the RR through SF-3 zoning
district the building official has no authority to even
authorize these outdoor assembly activities period even
on a teimporary basis. What's — the other interesting
point is the rest of this section s the zoning code s,
il you want to have a gathering of more than 50 people
and you get a permit for it, you have lobeina
non-residential zoning district. i
So as o malter of scale, even 1f you were i
1o find some degree or some ambiguity, the code is very
clear that the scale has to be limiled to 50 people. We
are discussing a [ 500-seat outdoor amphitheater, totally
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The stafT response is partly to our appeal
is code does not distinguish between indoor and outdoor
religious assembly. This is clearly incormeet. And
also the site plan and building pennit wers issued for
religious assembly use in a pennanent building and not
for temporaty use set forth in Section 25-2-921(C) of
the zoning code.

There are reasonable doubts as to the
interpretation, We think it goes absolutely the other
way. Wae think there is absolutely no Intitude for the
decisions that were inade.

And 50 the approval — the land usc
determinalions and the approval of the site plan,
westrictive covenant and the building permit condlict
with zoning code interpretations both before 2011 and
afterwards by the Development Assisiance Center, the
City Council, Greg's own departiment, PDRD diat no longer
exists, Code Compliancs and City Legal Department, And
we will go through there.

The first one is staff interpretations
made in 2007-2008 in response 16 e-mails sent by members
of the — of the appellants, Stafl — senior stafl'at
that and you can find this. The refercnces to the pages
i in — in the backup materiul. The staff ¢-muils
collectively say ihat the outdoor amphitheater project
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out of scale. Staff response is it's not applicable
because it applies to temporary use. That's a
disingenuous response. We'll get into it

In the - it's very simple logic. If the
building official can issue a temporary use permit for
an activity, then by definition that activity's
prohibited as 2 principal accessory usc in that zoning
base district. How do we know that?

The City Council tells us that. In 2011
they added a definition of temporory use permit io the |
sound ordinance because there was concem about |
permits — outdoor activities occurring that were not
legally permmitted.

That definition's in Section 9-2-1(15).

It's very clear. A permit issued by the Planing and
Development Review Department then the reference of |2
Chapter 25-2 Article 6, tetnporary uses, is 25-2-921
authorizes o temporary -- and I emphasize activitynot |
othcrwise allowed as a principal or accessory uscin a
base zoning district,

It i very logical that, if it's already
permitted, you don't need a temporary use permit for it ]
It's already aliowed use. It is only for activities
that are not permitied in that zoning district. And as i
we just talked about, outdoor activity is an assembly, 2
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including religious asscmbly, is one of those identified
uses that could be appraved on & temporary basis but not
in this RR zoning district. This is n 2011 ordinance
and it was passed by council cight months before the
approval of the site plan and restrictive covenant.

Now the next part of this is staff -- PDR
stafF itself proposed an amendinent to the very code
provision we're discussing tonight, And that started in
September of 2012, Now the rationale for this as
explained by stafT is that there was a church in East
Austin that was holding cutdoor benefits. Actually,
they were holding musical amplified and (iat's what
stimulated the dispute over there,

And stafT itself says that in certain
residential zoning districts it is prohibited or
strictly conditioned as to whether or not you can have
outdoor public assembly events. This is Greg's own
staff -- excuse me -- Mr. Guernsey's own staff promoling
and telling the Planning Comunission of the City of
Austin, public and the City Council that this code
provision prohibits cutdoor assembly in residential
zoning -- in certain residential zoning districts.

Now you go on in there and you -- in the
backup material Exhibit 12 you'll see a number of code
amendment backup sheets and they all contain the sane
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months. It is — makes no mention of the land -
LifeAustin land use determinations. And he bases his
new interpretation on non-enforcement of this code
provision, whicl we'lf get into community standards
later on.

The next chapter in this, Dolores Catholic
Church May 2013 they hold a festival. They are issued a
citation for holding an outdoor event in an SF-3 zoning
district. They are then sued by the City Legal
Departinent in municipal court for viclation and not
having n temporary use penmit because they can't get one
in nn SF-3 because the activity is prohibited,

Now in October of 2013 the lcigal
departiment agrees to disiniss the action if council
adopis the proposed amendment (o 25-2-921(C), which is
fo nuthorize the issuance of temporary use permits, not
1o ke outdoor religious services a permitted use. And
ultimately the city did dismiss that lawsuit one week
aller Mr. Guemsey issued his November 18th memo.

There was a reasonable doubt. If the city
as an institution recognized the LifcAustin land use
determinations as legal and consistent with the plain
language of the land — the zoning code, the code
amendment, the lnst-minute insertion of the 25-2-92D1
{sic) langunge and the November 18, 2013 memo from
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language. And this is very important, This code

provision would not have made cutdoor religious assembly
a pennitied usc in any zoning district. All it would

have done is authorize the building official to — to

issue a ternporary use permit for that cutdoor public
assembly or religions assembly. Tt still would be a
prohibited use.

Now we Iave achange. Andin—in—
in - in late Octaber after ali the public hearings are
closed stafl proposes a new senteace (o this code which
would have made outdoor religious services held on
property developed or used for refigious assembly to
be -- not require o teinporary use permit. It would have
made them legal.

s - so going on now in response to
that thers were some public pushback. You'll see the A
and C resolution in the backup material,

And after that in November 18 Mr, Guemsey
writes a memo to staff and says he's taken another look
at this code provision and he's decided that outdoor
festivals and benefits are part of those principal uses
and the code mnendment is no longer necessary.

The significance of this memo is its a
reversal of its own depariment’s posilion to the council
and Planning Commission and the public for more than 13
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Mr. Guernsey would not bave been necessary.

He'd already made the decision, Yet
there's no reference to it anywhere. And slso, the
proseculion of the Dolores Catholic Church would have
been enlirely inappropriate if that had been the state
of law in Austin,

Outdoor amphithenter as principal use, if
the use is permitted (sic) in & zoning district, then
the development permits for the prohibited use should
not be approved. You cannot get approval of an office
building or some olher non-residential building in a
residentinl district.

As (o the definition of religious
assembly, Ihis is instrective, The December 17th—
ir's actually -- Pve got December 17th letter. Maybe
it's December Tth. Mr. Conley, he writes and deseribes
relipious assembly activitics, non-religious non-profit
civic uses and some activities that include a {ee for
the benefit of a group, a family hos an emergency and
need - like their house burned down or for some
charitable organization.

M. Guemnsey's e-mail says [ understand
that the educations] and musical presentations will be
limited in scope -- limited in scope — and will be
subordinale (o the primary religious assembly use.
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Page 26 I Page 2 3 y
1 Clearly in his statement he is saying the educational 1 1o youradvocates, you can do that, 3’5
2 and musical presentations are not religious asseinbly, 2 MR. KLEEMAN: Welt, if I could peel off
3 Now the restrictive covenant ndds all 3 aybe three minutes ~
4 these principal uses. The key one is all the sudden 4 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Sure.
8 musical and theatrical performances are now n principal 5 MR. KLEEMAN: ~ to theyn and --
6 use. Andwe go onand then also the way the restrictive [ CHAIR BURKHARDT: That would be .-
7 covenant's written these oceasional charitable eveats 7 MR. KLEEMAN: ~ maybe three minutes to
8  arc now a principal usc under religious assembly. 8 myself, 1\ be gmtefial,
9 Thie restrictive covenant appears io be 9 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Okay,
10  coniract zoning, which is illegal in Texas, f 10 MR. KLEEMAN. Okny. And so, Mr. Chairman,
12 Mr. Gucmsey has testified that so long as LifeAustin 11 what we're going to do is I've ot six spenkers.
12 naintaing its tax-exempt status virtuolly any type of 12 They'reall going to kind of line up here.
13 event may be held at the outdoor emphitheater so long as 13 We got an extra three minutes. So yall
34 itis o fundmising event for a charitable organization. 14  caninkea breath,
15 Ineffect there is no zoning limitation on the type of 15 But I've been pounding on them to be
16 outdoor benefit events that can be held on the property 16 direct, to the point and be bricE. And Paula Jones witl F
17  that's zoned RR. 17 bethe first speaker E
i8 Then the last thing in our appeal is the 18 MS. JONES: Good evening, Mr, Chairinan, 3
19  occasional limitation. We think that tlis term is so 19  members of the board, stalf, My nnme is Pauls Jones.
20 vopue 25 10 be completely non-enforeeable, Now if you I 20 I'mpresident of the Hill Country Estates Homeowners .
21 look at Mr. Conley's letier, it should mean infrequent 21 Associntion, [—on behalf of the appellants | ;
22 ornot regular. The Oak Hill fire doesn't happen every 22 appreciate the opportunity to appear before you today. 1
23 yearor every month. A home doesn't bum down every 23 My involvement with the amphitheater began i
24 month, Tt should be infrequently. That was low it was 24 on February 25th, 2007 when I read an article in the .
25 represented, maybe once, maybe twice a year, 25 Austin Amevican Statesiman indicating Randy Philtips and
TH— e L TR == l e e— T T
Page 27 Page 29 [
1 LifeAustin in their response concedes 1 PromiscLand West Church were intending to buitd a i
2 they're holding three to four events o month during the 2  DreamCity very close to my neighborhood. It went on to 1
3 firstsix mooths of operation. That's not infrequent, 3 talk about the intent o have an ouldoor amphitheater J
4 That's regular, And we think that this provision 4 forconcerts and otber events and also to build ]
S should — the restrictive covenant should be reversed 5  facilitics for racquetball courts, basketball courts and }
6  because the definition of occasional lncks tie numerical 6  soccer fields other matters that would be for community i
7 specificity that land use regulations require. T resources.
8 I'm not sure where [ mn on my time but 8 The Statestimn quoted Randy Phillips saying i
8 I've blown through this pretty quickly because I know 9 what ] want to build is o community resource, what H
10 we're all anxious to go home, Il be happy to answer 16 want lo build is a community resource, I didn't want to ]
11 anyquestions. And if - chair, i1 bave time lcft I 11 build a church, In2007 and 2008 residents of my ]
12 over, I'd like to rescrve it and transfer it to my 12 ncighborhood, Covered Bridge and other residents from ;
13 rebutial time, 13 ncarby neighborhoods requested mectings with Randy :
14 CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. We'll I 14  Phillips and PromiseLand Wesl now known as LifeAustin. 1;
15  consider that, Thank you. 15 And we inet with them on several occasions ;
16 MR. KLEEMAN: How much time do [ have? 16  and expressed a willingness to work with them. We i
17 CHAIR BURKHARDT: How much time do we 17  offered to aceept an indoor music venue. But what we H
18  have? Six minutes. 18  couldn't agree to was what wos then proposed as 2 i
15 MR. KLEEMAN: Wow, okay. Now I'm off the 19 2500-seat outdoor amphitheater with amplified music that [
20 clock. We've goi six speakers. T want o bring them 20 was going to be a live music venue, 1
21 gllupso they can -- 21 Randy Phillips personally said that he §
22 CHAIR BURKHARDT: It would be okay if you 22 hoped o hove eight events per month to be held at the f
23 wanted - I'm inclined to give you six additional I 23 outdoor amphitheater, which amounts to nearly 100 events ;
24 minutes including your five-minute rebuttal time. But 24 per year. This is not religious assembly and it doesn't £
25 if youwd like to transfer some of that time to your -- 25  matter that they'e calting it religious assembly, ‘That . i
3
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can be dono indoors.

This is about the outdoor assembly of
peaple. And that Is prolibited by the zoning code.
Randy Phillips was also quoted in the Chronicle saying |
Jow there's peopls who moved out there expecling it 1o
be a steepy titile place, | can see why they might be
alarmed bt we're going to work hand in hand with the
neighborhoods, we're not here to impose our will on
others. He also added the community will love it

Well, for eight and a hal{ years
neighborhoods and those surmounding the LifeAustin
parcel have — and hundeeds of city — city residents
have told thein that we do not love it. So on behalf of
the appellants in this community 1 respectfully request
that you make this right and thet you grant our appeals.

MR. KIRK: Good evening. My name is Mike
Kirk. I'm the president of the Covered Bridpe Properly
Owners Association. [ represent 340 homes, 340 famities
in our neighborhood. While Hill Country Estates is
located to the west of the amphitheater we are located
to the east of the amphitheater.

My — our issues are similar ta what Hill
Country has, The noise, the music, the Lights, the
clapping and shouting now cnters our homes whether we
ltke it or not. The most recent concert this past
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And that's how it's seen.

Its a travesty that we've been fighting
this for seven years and we're only now being heard, We
are in no way oppased 1o religion, worship or religious
nssembly. But we are opposed to amplified sound
invading and degrading our lives, our neighborhood aed
our home values.

1 have here 350 signed petitions of
neighbors, people immediately in our neighborhood
surrounding LifeAustin amphitheater, 1d also like for
those of you in support of the nppeals to please quictly
stard up or, if you're alrendy standing up, please raise
your hand. And you can ses how many peopls are here
from our community today, tonight.

Please comrect this travesty. We - we
ask you for your help, Thank you,

MR. BUTLER: My name is Kim Butler. T
live n1 7100 Bright Star Lane and I'm & fonner officer
of the Hill Country Estates Homeowners Asscciation.

In an October 2008 mceting with residents
of the area Life Austin presented their vision for what
was then known as DreamCity. It included components
that were incompatible with the sites rural residential
zoning such as §it sports fields, n six-story parking
garage and an amphithenter.
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Sunday was heard inside many, many homes in Covered
Bridge and 1 received many complainty, reports that
sounds upect funilics, children, children trying to
sleep.

s intrusive lo whatever we do, We
dida't ask for this. In fect, ns Pavla said, we
bhegged - hiterally begged LifeAustin not to build this
in our neighborhood. We trusted the cily officials
would do the right thing and protect us. That's why
we're here today.

We didn't ask for this. ['msomry. In
addition to the Iack of due process and unwanted
intrusion to our homes, I'd like to describe my
community’s greatest fear, the feac that people will not
want fo move o Covered Bridge and our housing values
plummet. Recent — recently several of ug visited
another development, And when we shared with the real
esialo manager where we were from the coinment came back
oh, you're the ones with the amphitheater meaning the
wurd is out and it's probably already affected our
property values. This is grave concem to us.

‘This ia a travesty, a travesty the city
would perndt and alfow this to happen and that the city
would allow the amphitheater to run, run without sound
pennits and operate as any otber residential dwelling.
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LifeAustin when asked why they bought a
property whose zoning would not allow most of the
components they were pruposing replied because Christ
was right. LifeAustin knew that their site plan was not
appropriate for the property but they did not care.

1 was also the primary contact person for
the neighbors between the neighbors and the site plan
case manoger Sam Graham throughout the site plan review
process. After the site plan was approved we received
guidance from the cily that a restrictive covenant
agreement would be created lo define the use of the
amphitheater,

We were actually assured by city staff’
that our fears and concems would be sllayed. The
neighbers asked to be allowed 1o participate in the
creation of the pgreement. 1 sent the c-mail myself,
Cur request was ignored and the agreement was crafted
between city stafl and representatives of the church.

As a result the very parties needing
protection were excluded from the process. And the
resulting agreement achually expanded LifeAustin's use
rights for the amphithenter by revising the state and
the citys definition of religious assembly to include
all manner of entertainment, activities typically viewed
a3 commercial or civic in nature,

—
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1 Today when neighbors call 311 1o complain 1 rural residential and I respect the privileges and z
2 nbout the noise from the amphitheater the city logs 2 responsibilities such a designation means, Heariog the ; 66
3 thesc complaints as loud commnercial music. That makes 3 poise from the amphitheater myself and the outery from
4 sense. IF1 brought big name scts like the Gatlin 4 ncighbors motivated me to create the website
5  Brothers 10 my backyard, charged people 40 bucks a 5 |ifcaustinnoise.org to help visualize and record the
6 ficket, charped that for anyone who wanted to atterd and 6  complaints created by the church's live concerts,
7 did this every weekend, well, the city would rightfully 7 Using Google maps it allows people to pin r1
@  coll my heme a commercial venue. 8  their location and specify a level of disturbance i
9 Well, it's lime lo recognize LifeAustin's 9  (hey'veexperienced. And youll sce on the handout the

10  amphitheater ns a commercial venuc, too, especially 16 scrcen shot and the map of what it’s - it's colleeted

11  since their house seats 1500, Please approve our 11  solfar

12  appeals of LifeAustin's site plan, the restrictive 12 So it is my hope that this tool can give 2

13 covenant ngreeinent and the building permit. Please make 13 voice to the neighbors not being heard here tonight. As

14 this right. 14  you cansee on the map, we can certainly hear LifeAustin

15 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you. 15  outside of the two peighborhoods represented in the

16 MS. DANSON: Hi. My nmnc is Kristin 16 appeal Thank you,

17 Danson. Ilive at 6801 Bright Star Lane. [ also own 17 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you.

18 the properiy nexi to me at 6305, I've been there for 16 18 MR, PRUETT: Mr. Chairman, board members,

19 years. Pmon two and a half acres. I my house my 19 my name is Danyl Pructt. Y'm the president of the Oak

20  Iast appraisal was approximately 650,000. 20  Hill Associntion of Neighborhoods or OHAN. Thatis a

21 At this point I'm assuming my property is 21 umbrelln crganization of different neighborheod

22 definitely poing down, This past summer and fali [ kave 22 associations and HOAs and POAs in Oak Hill. We have

23 handly been able to use my pool on the weekends, my 23 gbout 30 members. So we — we cover o lot of ground in

24 giill, my gazebo and my two and a half acres becausc all 24  Qak Hill

25  itis is a bunch of noisc coming inlo my backynrd. Now 25 OHAN's ndvocacy on belalf of its member

Page 35 Page 37

1 wherea lot of people = because Fin on the most castemn 1  organizations includes edopting resolutions on matters i
2 side of Hill Country Estatcs it is now in my home. 2  ofconcem to our inembers. In this case we've adopted i
3 The sound lins continued to goup. have 3 three different resolutions regarding the LifeAustin i
4 been woken from nty inaster bedroomn beeause of the sound. 4 anphitheater going all the way back to 2008. All of ‘
5 It sounded like my alurm clock was going off. My 5  these are in your backup material,
6 office - which I primarily work from my fiouse —~ when 6 As you can see from the resolutions and i
7 theylre doing sound checks in the afiernoons is 7 the quantity of the cormespondence that you've received F
8 extremcly distuptive in my home, 8 from individuals who've had their lives dramatically H
9 And, you know, T have two Great Dancs, 9 impacled by this outdoor assembly and -- and amplified

10 Oneof them will not even leave my porch to go outside 10  sound, this is not merely a local problem or one HOA

11 because she's afinid that there's people in 1oy backyard. 11 problem. Thisis o regional problem that affecis i

12  That's how loud the sound is. So ifthis is a religious 12  pumerous neighborboods and numerous individuals and not 3

13  pructice, iy question is is why is the city cnabling 13 just the five individuals you've heard bere tonight. '

14 (his religious practice to be forced into my home 14 The problem with the amphitheater thot's %

15  because that's what this is. This is my home and 've 15  shown in your backup materinls is also consistent with

16  been there for §6 years. 'm asking you to please make 16  what weat OHAN have experienced, IU's one -2

17 thisright. 17  significant problem that has had a far greater impact

19 CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. Thank you. 18 than just n couple of people in a single neighborhood.

19 MR, WATTS: Good evening chair and board 19 The people affected by this have made

20 members. My name is Alan Watis. 1 live on Thomas 20  probably what's the — you kiow, the most sipnificant

21  Springs Road a few thousand feet north of LifeAustin's 2% investment of their entire lives in their home. And

22  amphitheater and I've spent the past 16 years there 22 they are having thot investinent destroyed by having

23 building my sanctuary on my wooded wildlife-filled 10 23 amplified sound and outdoor assembly in residentially

24 acres of land. 24 zoned areas. They shouldnt be subject to these

25 My property like LifeAustin's is zoned 25  unwanled intrusions into their home and into their
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1 seclusion. 1 Christ. Tnorderto do that we really need to pursue
2 This use is simply incompatible with 2 three major strategies.
3 residential use. And we at OHAN would urge the boord to 3 The fitst is to enlighten people
4 grant all of the appeals. Thank you. 4  spiritnally. The second is o connect peaple in
5 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you. All right, S authentic relationships. And the last strategy is to
6  Where are we on time? 6  encourage our worshipers o serve each other, the lord,
7 AfV SUPPORT. Got like two minutes, 7 the church and the comimunity and abroad.
] CHAIR BURKHARDT: That's afl right. Is ] The model of our church is {o use the god
% there any — any additional comments you'd like to make 9 given gifts of creativity that manifest itseif in art,
10  real quickly from the - froin the appellant? You've 10  drama, dance and snusic to nol only be the way that we
11 siill got your - you've got your — 11 worship our lord in grotitude for those created gifts
12 MR. KLEEMAN: 1 think you allowed me three 12 butabso to help to rmise the relationship that our
13 ininutes. Idont - 13 membars have with — with the lord through recognizing
14 CHAIR BURKHARDT: | understand you've got 14 the gifts thnt be has given to the artists that
15  cight minutes total [efl for your rebutta! 15  pagticipate in those events,
18 MR. KLEEMAN: That's sufficient — 16 Our desire is to reach people in Austin
17 CHAIR BURKHARDT: All ripht. 17  who may not have a personal relationship with Clirist.
18 MR, KLEEMAN: -- Mr. Chainnan, 18  And specifically our desire in building an amplitheater
19 CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. Okay. 19  was to create o worship venue whete people who mipht be 3
20  LifeAustin? 20  somewhat reluctant to enter the doors of a traditional L
21 MR, BROUGHTON: [ think we have some 21 church but would be willing to come to an amphitheater
22 charts they're going to pull up. 22 worship center and allow us to begin to engoge themin a
23 CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. 23 conversation that we hope would awaken them spiritually. |
24 MR. BROUGHTON: If that's okny, Thank 24 And this has proven to be the case. We |1
25  you. Good evening. My name is Dennis Broughton and I'm 25  cumently have about 2,000 people whe worship with us on
Page 39 Page 41 I;
1 amemberalong with my fomily of LifeAustin Chwich, And 1 Sunday momings. The amphilheater was coinpleted in mid |3
2 | thought — we thought it might be helpful here to give 2 2015. Itsa 750 permanent scat amphitheater. We are
3 youa little bit of background about LifeAustin Church 3 able to bring in portable chairs to seat another 200 or
4 since there have been many statements tonight that have 4 s0. And there's a nice grassy green knoll that, if
S mischamcierized whiat we're about. 5  prople want to sit on blankets, several hundred more
6 The church is a relatively new church. It 6 people could sit on blankets and observe the -- the
7 was formed in 2005. Initially it met in the high school 7 warship service that's held there.
8  here in Austin, started with about 80 membars. Over a 8 Since we received the city approval of -
9 period of seven or eight years the worshipers increased 9 and obtained our certificate of occupancy we also
10  toabout 600, It allowed the church to purchase some 10  underwent a sound test with the City of Austin Music
11  property on Hlighway 71 you've heard about to build 11 Depurtment and received guidance from them about the
12 ourselves a pennanent worship center. 12 city codes that we woulkl e required to operate under,
13 ‘That center was completed in October off 13 And 50 we began (o have evenis in mid
14 2012 afler the process that you've heard described where 14 2015, Todate we've held about 16 worship and praise
18  the church applied to the city for various pennits that 15  services in the amphitheater. 1think actually maybe
16  thecity told us were required and those permiits were 16  another one we held Sundny night. The number might have
17  pranted. We initially built our — what we call our 17  changed but up to this point about 16 or so praise and
18  main worship center. It seats a couple of thousand 18  worship services in the amphitheater,
19  people in — in the tnain worship center, And we've held 19 All of these services are characterized by
20 warship there from Oclober of 2012 until currently. 20  pmayer, by blessings, by testimonials, by various forms
21 The initial vision for the church was to 21 pfcreative arts that are faith-based, Christian --
22  also build an amphitheater worship center, And by the 22 contemporary Christian bands, the Gatlin Brothers,
23 year2012 we were in a position fo begin to make plans 23 Lamy Oallin was a member of our - be's a mentber of our
24 1o dothatl. The vision of LifeAustin Church is to 24 church, aticnds our church when he's in Austin, gavea
25  (mnsfonn people’s lves through the power of Jesus 25  awesomne lestimony about his growing up as a gospel
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1  singer and later his becoming a Christian, 1 We've held one event this year that snight be considered
2 So all of these evenis are part -- this 2 pchoritable event, ‘We actually believe itisa
3 is--this i3 the way that we worship our lord. Otlier 3 religious asserubly event because it was to the benefit
4 people may have different views of what they prefer for 4 ofa faith-bascd organization named the Salvation Ammy. i
5  worship. This is the way that we worship. This is the 5 A thinl-party atfist came (o us, asked to E
6 way that we practice our religious assembly. 6 lease our facility to have a fundraiser for the
7 In scheduling our cvents they're - 7 Salvation Army and some of his arlist friends come and
8 actuaily determine which events we'll have by the stall 8  participate. And they raised 227,000 dollors in one
9  ofthe church in terms of what they're attempting to 9 night to help homeless women and children through the
10 accomplish through the minisiry, what kind of event do 10  Salvation Army, o very strong faith-based organization,
12 they think would bring peoplc to the church that might 11 Wobelieve thal that is an expression of our religion
12 1ot come otherwise, what kind of event would allow our 12 und our desire to serve other people through our-faitl
13 worshipers to grow closer in their refationship to the 13 The - I'd like 16 -~ 1o end by
14 lord 14  summarizing, The purpose that LifeAustin had in mind in
15 And then events are designed, Sometimes 15  building that amphitheater was to build a perranent
16 inorder ta get the artist that we wish would be part of 16 venue for religions assembly praise and worship events.
17  our religious assembly event we go through booking 17 And that is the use to which it has been put,
18  agents. We go through a promoter. The church is 18 Ouvr contemporary praise and worship style
15 absolulely not in the business of commercial activity in 19  isthe styl that is preferred by our clhurch members.
20 spite of what you may have heard tonight, 20 Atthis time | would Jike to ask — I'm here
21 These ere religious ceremonies, religious 21 representing a very large congregation of people who
22 cvents, worship and praise. We don't have the ability 22 have given sacrificially of their money to build the
23 tolicket. But some of the performers arc quite costly 23 amphitheater and some of them bave joined me tonight,
24 tobringin. And so promoters often times will help us 24 Idlike to ask those members that are here in support
25 control the number of people that are going to show up 25  of the amphitheater to stand, please.
Page 43 Page 45 |
il
1 ioattend an event by having passes. Sometimes there's 1 ‘This is a small portion of the 2,000 ;'
2 pcharge for those passes fo help us offset the cost of 2 people who worship in our church and whe arc dedicated j
3  theevent 3 1o using this amphitheater to transform the lives of the i
4 I'believe you'll sec in your — the 4 people in Austin. The services are designed to attract E
5  materinl that we submitted to you in our pre-subrnission 5 those who might not come to o traditional church, 1
6  that the church is — through these events that we've 6 That's okay. Right? There's many {
7 had this year the church is -- thesc events are costing 7 different church communitics in this town, We believe
8  us shout 7,000 dollars an event, more than any nmount of 8 there's n greal opportunity to invile some people to 1
9 revenue that would come in. 9 come to our campus thal would nat come through the doors [}
10 So if you really look at the Rill cost of 10  even of our church, of our main chusch building. 5
11  this ministry of our church, we're expecting to spend 11 And [ would like to share with you that we 7
12 naybe 250,000 dollars a year to have worship services in 12 have been fully complisni, The city bag cooperated with
13  the amphilleater. But we believe that that's what we're 13 usat every step along the way to belp us understand ]
14 cafled to do beenuse we believe it will bring people to 14 what the requirements are. We have been fully compliant j
15 ourchurch and allow us to introduce them to a life of 15  with every request that the city has made of us in terms i
16 faith and transfonn their lives. 16  ofthe permits, We have built it in occordance with the i
17 We are — all events have been carefully 17  city's guidance. We used the city music offices to help 1
18  vetied to be in compliance with the restrictive 18 us design  statc-of-the-art sound system, 3
15 covenant. I would like to correct one misunderstanding 19 We have never, never violated the city's 1
20  [believe that's occurred tonight. The accasional 20  ondinances around sound, And so tonight we would ask -
21 wording in that restrictive covenant inedifies charitable 21 that you would uphold the city stail's decision to L
22 gvents. it is not occasionn! worship services, 22 permit our religious use facility known os the ~
23 We -- we are allowed through the 23 LifeAustin Asophithealer, :
24 resirictive covenant to have worship services, praise 24 At this time T would like to ask some of i
25  snd worship services without restriction on the number, 25  my other collcagues to come up and make comnents. Thank 1|
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you very much,

MR. METCALFE: Steve Meicalfe on behalf
of - of the church. We'd like 1o do with the first 20
minutes we may have two or three different people
present you a couple different things.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: By iny record there's
sbout nine and o half minutes left.

MR, METCALFE: Okay. I think - ! think
Dennis did o really good job of explaining our —~ the ~
primarily where we are, which is we've been working with
the city on this for a long time to get this done. And
every step of the way we've been following and getting
the pennits that the city asked us to get.

You kmow, so we've gone through a site
plan. Restrictive covenant catme as part of the site
plan to help further define what religious assembly is.
We've pone through building permits. We were asked by
the city to get an outdoor music venue pennit. But then
it was decided that we dido't need that permit.

So all - all along this hasn't been the
church deciding what permits or what nules we have to
follow. We're just following the city's tules, We're
following the rules the city asked us to follow.

You lmow, the crux of what the — the
appellants are talking about is religious assembly, is
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1t's — it's n provision that allows you
to get & lemporary use pennit for n temporary use that
occurs In a — in a Jocation that does't have the
primary zoning or the primary use to allow whatever that
useis, And aguin, they focus on the new definition of
lemporary usc pennit. But it says it means a permil
issued by the Planning and Development Review Department
to authorize a temporary activity not olherwise allowed
as a principal or accessory use in the base zone
district.

We don't need o TUP in -~ the base zoning
district allows the religious assembly use, whether i's
indoues or outdoors. And there’s nothing io that
section that prohibits, that -- (hat tadks about
prohibiling outdoor assembly use,

Somehow we lost our — 50 we think it's
clear that what we are doing is religious sssembly use.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: We - if you want to
pause and get that back up, we can do that.

Whal happened? All right.

MR, METCALFE: So the — the appellants -
the appellants have been ~ have pointed oul a nuinber of
occasions where stafl has made a decision or
detennination and then adjusted that determination,
which is true. But that happens all the time.

i
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this religious assembly. And 1 think from the testimony
and from what you've heerd from Dennis and you'll hear
from other memhers of the church clearly that's what
they're doing there. 1 mean it's alt about -- it's all
about the way this church wants to worship,
Some of the things brought up by
appeliants regarding indoor versus cutdoor, well,
clearly the City of Austin has never madea —a
distinction between indoor and cutdoor. Religious
assembly, it occurs indoors. It occurs outdoors. |
think we'll give you some really good examples of
outdoor worship that's going on at other facilities.
Through that process we also — we also
came up wit1 a restrictive covenant to further define
what those uses are. And then what ilie appellants -- a
big part of the appellants' argument is that Section
25-2-921 somehow is a prohibition of outdoor religious
assernbly,
Well, if you look at that section, it
doesn't -- it doesn't — {t doesn't talk about any kind
of prohibition. }mean it's -- alls it — what that
section says is it says that you may get a temporary use
permit. So it suys may be permitied. There's nothing
in this section that says it prohibits ouldoor assembly
and -- or outdoor religious assembly.
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I mean they make determinations, Other
issues come up. They look ot it. They adjust il. None
of those things were actually passed. They came before
council or they -- or they were pulled back from
council. But those things didn't pass.

What the - what staff has consistently
done and (he -- and the pennits we have consistently
followed say that religious assembly use is a permitted
use in the RR district, whether that's outdoors or
indoors,

And we have a couple other people coming
up but I just thought | would point this out. Based on
our research — [ know that there's some concerns about
property values. But nothing shows that property valucs
have gone down in either orco. Houses are not staying
on the market too Jong, Everything -- there's nothing
that this amphitheater yet has hnd & — an effect on —
on property value, So I thought that was worth pointing
out to you-nll,

MR. CAPEZZUTT: Good evening. My name is
John Capezzuli and | have the honor of serving as the
busincss pastor at LifcAustin Church.

Today 1 had an opportunity to share seine
of the steps that we have taken in order lo monitor
sound at our property line (o ensure that we have never
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exceeded the 75-decibel limit prescribed by the City of
Austin ordinances with any amplified sound coming from
our amphithcater or anywhere on our property for that
malter.

We incorporsted significant design
features into the building, including crientation,
directional speakers, sound insultion on both the walls
and the roof as well as louvered sound reflection walls.
We also made a significont investment in landscape and
managed to pul in some very mature trees that also
helped mitigate some of the sound emanating from the
amphitheater itself,

We are the [irst orgoanizalion in the
United States to putchase the state-of-the-art sound
manitoring system designed by world-renowned company
Idibri, who is also respansible for all the audio, video
and lighting that you see in the minphitheater building.
‘The system allows us to deploy monitoring stations at
our property line os well as in the worship center
ilsclf. And we have a monitor inside the amphitheater
at the front of the house position, which is actally
where the monitor engincer would be mixing the sound in
the -- in the space,

We also have two roving monitors that can
deploy on our property and then we also put one on the
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that Mr, Guernscey did not have the authority to do whal
he did. And I wanted to point out to you that the Court
of Appeals in a decision that they rendered stated wilh
respect to each comnplained-of activity, Guemsey's
e-mail, the restrictive covenant, approval of the site
application or any other activity determined to be use
classification Guemscy had the stalutory discretion to
make such defcrminations and take such actions,

So to suggest that he did not have the
nutherity to do what he did is inconsistent and not
consistent with what the Court of Appeals found.

1 also wanted to state in the last fow
minules that | have two ather poinls, ooe of which is
that there's a suggestion — actually, it's very overt
that religious assembly under the Austin code cannot be
outside, just can't is what they allege.

And, in fact, Mr. Guermnsey knew what the
law is about frec expression of religion when he took
the steps that he did. And this bonrd actually under
the law is required to make sure that you understand
what ihe obligations are from the board as to regulating
free expression of religion.

We didn't take - it didn't take much time
to actually go on Fecebooks of churches around Austin to
find pictures of outdoor activities. For instance, (hia
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east and west property lines at all times. By deploying
this system both at the property line and within the
worship center at every event that takes place at the
LifeAustin Amphitheater -- and [ want to emphasize the
word every event - that takes place at the amphitheater
we are alse able to monitor both remotely and locally
the levels of the sound emanating from the speakers at
our amphitheater.

During our praise and worship evenis these
levels are consistently monitored in real time by a
church stalf membes to ensure that we do not exceed any
appropriste levels at the property line. Based on my
personal observations, a review of all the data from
every cvent that we've had so far, we have never been in
violation of the 75-decibel limit at the property line.

I want to emphasize the word never. We have never
exceeded 75 decibels at the property line, which is the
level that was set forth by the city,

Tihank you for your time.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you.

MR. WEISBART: Good evening. Pin Geoff
Weisbart on behalf of the church. [ know [ don't have
much lime left but 1did want to address a couple of the
precise points in their appeal.

One of the things that they've alleged is
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is First Baptist Church of Austin outside, This is one
of their ouldoor events, Red River Church, St. Louis of
France Catholic Church you might notice there, This is
the San Jose Cathalic Church actually holding rmass
oultside with amplified sound.

My time's up.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Why don't you take
another 30 seconds.

MR. WEISBART: And the point that I'm
mzking is that Mr. Guemnsey knew that within Austin
religious assembly, freedom of religion occurs outside
and many people - there's another example - feel that
it's very appropriate to be outside.

There was u supgestion that the city filed
a complaint against the Dolores Church because they
attempied to do it. And the point that [ want to 1nake
to you is that city staff and the Cily Legal Department
finally realized that it was inoppropriate to charge
that chureh with doing anything wrang and they dismissed
that complaint.

And if you [ook t the restrictive
covenanl and if you look at the signature page, what you
will find is not only did that get signed by
Mr. Guernsey, that document is fully approved by the
city legal staff right there. So this was nota

ke

D R T S My PTT W I TRy TT TP

[ P e r—— —_

P PP T L My

ken@kcnowen.com * www.kenowen.com
800.829.6936 * 512.472.0880

{(Pages 50 to 53)



15

O D - o B W N

NNNNNDRERRER B

Page 54

decision that was lightly made. It was done with
counsel and was correctly made.

Thank you,

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you. Allright,
Now we'll hear speakers for LifeAustin. You-gll have 10
minutes.

MR. HARRISON: My name’s Allen Harrison.
T'm n member at LifcAustin Church. 1'd like to thank
all of you for your service and for listening to the —
and helping our comnmunity.

My faith in Chirist is central to who [ am.
Consequently, my church is centra! to how [ live my
life. LifeAustin has been n blessing 1o me, to my wife,
and to my kids. We have invested our lime as well as
our finances in — in the amphitheater because we
believe that it's an expression of who Christ has called
us to be as a congregation in this particular community,
a comununily that emphusizes music, that cmphasizes the
outdoors, that gmphasizes unconventional approaches (o o
whole lot of different aspects uf life, including
churcly,

I realize that it can seem a little bit
unconventional to have an amphitheater as part of a
church worship service and part of the church ministry
but it really shouldn't, Jesus did some of his best
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dircetly. Aboul five years ago when [ hed no

relationship with 1his church other than very cnsual and

I was going to another church. And ihis church when I

went through o very difficult sitwation and [ wound up

at M.I3. Anderson and sone lengthy surgeries and -- and a
12-hour surgery my pastor -- my current pasior seal
somebody from the church down there to be with me and my
family,

He didn't really know, pastor didn't know
me. That's the love that my pestor bas for me and the
people that are in this church, And as you would lock
into the — the people (hat ere in this place now, the
reason that we're here is because our pastor loves us
and our pastor loves the people that are in our church
and are engaged in worship,

For me he helped me understand that
worship is @ healing process. And in the time that §
was at M.D. Anderson and the years that T've gone
through there the - the doctors down there say
micaculous. And I know that il's come from expression
of worship.

This amphitheater is a tremendous part of
what aur paslor’s vision is for the transformation of
lives and it's transformed over 400 people. The finance
team, we keep mack of the people who claim
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waork outside. And we — you may know the most famous
sernon was the sermon on the mount. It wasn't the
sermon in the termple. It wasa’t the senmon in the
syagogue,

It was otitdoors because that's where the
people were. And we belicve in (his community we are
likely to be able to impact people’s lives by offering
services in an minphithenter setting that does not feel
like a traditionat church, that may be less
uncomfortable or [ess foreign to someone and that by
offering our services in ilwt venue we can reach people
who might not otherwise come io our church.

Whether we meet indoors or cutdoors, our
intent is the same, to exalt the name of Jesus Christ
because we know what he knew, that it does not take
walls to have church.

MR, WILLIAMS: Alan Williams, I'm the
finoace chair of LifeAustin and volunteer there and
serve as a — on thal commitiee.

My personal expression and interest in
tis is that what worship has denc and my pastor's ~
Pastor Randy's visicn for this church is as Dennis
Broughton cxplained i3 for transfonmation, is
transformation through worship and through the arts.

And for me personally this fit me really
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transformation and restoration. And it's been over 400
peaple in six months.

This fits the vision of the church and so
powerfi, this major outreach for who we are. Thank you
very much for your consideration.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you. Is there
anyone else? There's about six and a half ininutes leli.

MR BLACKMON: 11 go.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right.

MR. BLACKMON: My name is Fred Blackmon,
Jr. 'mnot 2 member of this church. I'm a member of 3
different church but Tim here in support,

1 bet you've never cven been o the
amphitheater. But I do know that it is the vision of
any church or any refigious organization, whether it be
Christian, Muslim, whatever is to find a way lo reach
out to othets to show others that there — that there is
a —a better way. And 1 fect like that's just what
LifeAustin is attempting to do in this situation is to
show other people that there's a better way.

And when you do that, when you say to
someane clse you don't have to do this, there's the
better way, you change got enly their future but the
future of the people around them because you might
clhange a criminal froma criminal. And, therefore, your
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1 house won' get broken into. 1 So [ just wanled to sy I'm very thankfist
2 And this is a small thing people overlook. 2 ofthe fact that we do have an amphitheater there to
3 Butthe -~ the reason the amphitheater js there, the 3 reach out to the community and just bring everybody back
4 reason that all these churches are having cvents owiside 4 o their natural place. That's all. Thank you.
§  isnot to bother the neighbors. Its just to show other 5 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you.
& people thel there's a better way and that, when you walk 6 MR, JESSEE: Thank you for the time,
7 the better way, you walk the better line, then yous 7 board. My name is Dan Jessee, I'm a mewber of
&  children will tumn cut better and keep their kids in 8 LifeAustin Church, I've been a mewber for nbout two and
9 school, they go to college ond have a better life. 8 alalfyears.
10 For some people that may seein trivial. [ 1o T'was raised in a tredition very different
11 just woke up, my parents told me go to college and 11 than the tradition ns — and worship as practiced at
12 that's what 1did, But for others il's not that simple. 12 LifeAustin, In the fast two and a half years I've
13 Ifthere's not someone helping them fo sce the better 13 become the lead of our Celebrate Recovery Progrmam, which
14 way, they won't ever secit. 14 is working hard to transform lives.
15 And places like this church and other 15 And [ stand kere tonight as a testimony
16  churches that have these events, they arc truly trying 16  that what's bappening at LifeAustin is powerful The
27 tochange the face of Austin, Texas for the belter. And 17  worship and the transformation is real. And 1 believe
18 Ithink it's something that shoult be applauded and not 18 that the eatire progrmueatic approach LifeAustin has to
19  something that should be fooked down upon. con rest 19 dealing with people, especially the unchurched and those
20 assured that had not someone from a church came and told 20  that are coming {o the lord for the first time, is
21  mc there's a beiter way you might be wondering about me 21 something that should be sespected and something thnt
22 breaking into your house or breaking into your car 22 shonld be encouraged.
23 because | was aot slways 1 good guy. 23 Thank you very much.
24 So 1 think that we —and I'm just being 24 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you., Abouta
25  honest. You know, but we need to look at something to 25  minute and a balf. Aoyonc want to say anything?
Page 59 Page 61
1 this. Maybe therc is something we can do to — to 1 MR. LACQUEMENT: Good evening. My name is
2 appease the neighbors, Meybe we drop the decibel level 2 Mel Lacquement. 1do nol belong to the church, Tm an
3 (rom 75 to 65 or whatever lhe situation may be. Butto 3 cxpert wilness in zoning law, comprehensive planning,
4 shut down the amphithcater completely T think would be a 4 have served on many boards here in Austin as well ng
5  great mistake, » great mistuke for city of Austin and 5  other states. I've cnabled legislation in Nevada, Las
6 for the peopls in our community. 6  Vegos, Missourd, Lake Charles, Louisinnn,.shtcvcpart.
7 CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right, Thank you, 7 Texas, Dallas and Austin.
8 About three and a half minutes. 8 Pve handled over 300 zoning cases
9 MR. JACK: My name is Jock. I'm & member 8  throughout the United States and have wen every one.
10  of LifeAustin Clurch, I've been there about three and a 10 TIvenever [ost a zoning case, I've looked at -~ at
11 half years npow and I came there because it was like 11 what’s geing on here and I find no fault. I find no
12  poing home, It was a remendous comimunity of people 12 cvidence of fault. I find that what the church s doing
13 thatare loving and coring and it just really fouched my 13 i3 proper aod it's in order and should be respecicyl.
14 heart, 14 Now I attended the church fora VA
15 And when [ heard that they were going to 15 ceremony last month. Asd it was the first time I have
16  be building the amphitheater ¥ was excited. [ wns g 16 felt honored to be a disabled veteran io the military
17 worship leader for over 10 years at a church in 17  lorces. Thischurch gavethat to me. I'na hundred
1B Califonia. And Iknow that through the worship people 18  percent disobled Ranger. I honored all the military
19 were bought to love and they were just in love with the 18  forces that have deceased, that have survived, thet are
20 lord because they were able (o hear the music that just 20 disabled and cspecially the young forces that are going
21 softened their heart. 21 overscas now to face the terrorism and the chaos in
22 My grandmother used (o sing one of the 22 harm's way that they are facing,
23 songs that they sang at our church. It just brought me 23 This church allowed that 1o be presented,
24 buck home to thinking about all the past that 1 had with 24 'There's only onc comment that ! would have on — on the
25 iy family and stuff, 25 resiriclive covenanis,
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1 1 know my titne's up. Customary and 1 hearing this in their homes and it's disrupting children 3
2 incidental accessaty uses ace penuited by the 2 onschoot nights. This is - L can't cven comprehend
3 restrictive covenants, And [ would consider most of 3 it, And the fact thot they - that the government is
4 those things that they've done or all of thein fall undey 4 allowing them to force their religious beliefs into the
S  thaotcategory. Since July they have had 16 events, 5  howmes of people who don't agree 10 it is outrageous.
6  which amounts to three events a month, 6 Now this argument that — remember the
7 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Please wrap up. 7 last picture I had up with all the outdoor activities.
[} MR. LACQUEMENT: ‘Thank you very much for 8  The City of Austin enforces its zoning code and its ;
9 your attention. 9  whole land development cede on complaints, It enforces
10 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thouk you. Okay. By my 10 bycomplaints. And what this really is is a way for i
11  record you have eight minules, 11  community standards lo come into play.
12 MR. KLEEMAN: Thank you. Thank you. 12 The -~ the Martha Salinas, who made the
13  Robert Kleeman agnin for the appellants and I'l ry to 13 complaints reganding Dolores Catholic Church, she hod
14 goa little bit slower than I did the first time but try 14  not complained sbout the prior festivals they had. s
15  andsave the time. 15  only when they plugged in the amplifiers and started 1
16 There's 0 vety powerful statement s that 16 having loud music, H is the nature of these aclivities l
17  nclions speak louder than words. And so tonight you've 17  that is changing.
18  heand {estimony regarding making the amphitheater seem 18 There were no complaints regarding
19  smaller than we've claimed. Al you have to do is fook 18  schoolchildren having the Spring Fling or the Fall
20 ot page 164 of the matedal to see where we get the 20 Festivol because the community nccepts those. But Texas
21  thousand plus 500 number. 21 law is very clear. You connof change the code by
22 And, you know, the stateroent that this is 22  pon-enforcement or by erroneous decisions by stafl
23 pworship center, [ urge you to look al page 161 of the 23  members. Only the City Council can change the Jand
24  material, Thesc are both documents prepared by the 2&  development code, F
25 church. 25 This prohibition that is in 9-2 — '
Page 63 Page 65
1 1r's nolable that in the response there's 1 25.2-921, lemporry use pennits, specifically C, bas
2 really no counier-argument to the fact that when we kaid 2 been in the code for 30 years. This is not anything
3 out the lawsuit and the code amendmend that semehow the 3 pew. And the code does not discriminate between H
4 land use determinations tbat are so unchallengeable now 4 religious assembly and other things. It is in there and 1
5  were forgotien during an entire year of processing the S s very clear and it is -- | cannot — it is hanl to ’
6 code amendment and that the city would prosecute a 6 believe that anyone can read this — this stretch of 3
7 church for viclating this very provision of the church 7  data we - and evidenice we put before you and say oh, it H
8 (sic). 8  onlyapplics to temporary use permits. IFit's allowed, 3
9 There was o statement that — 9  youdontneed s permit, period, if it's an allowed E
10  represcotation that the kawsuit was dismissed because 10 activity, §
11  thecity realized it had been a mistake, Please look ot 11 Now let's talk about reliance. As they i
12  page 327 of the material thal we have in front of you. 12 sayin the letter that we're relying oa city directors,
13 And il is the coust order thal says the city has agreed 13 well, let me teil you the chuech has had very able
14 (o dismiss if the ordinance passcs. Al right? 14  counsel with Mr. Metcalfe fiom the beginning, Mr. Carl
15 And where — this is going to get into our 15 Conley's a former city craployee that Lielped them. 1
16  appeal that has not been forwarded that we'll = I 16 Now what iz not in the briefbut -- but is E
17 talk obout in o minute. But fhat lawsuit way dismissed 17 in your backup material is really the instigating event
18  one weck alter Mr. Guemnsey's memorandum of Novernber 18, 18 here. Now according to Mr, Guemsey's sworn testiimony
13 There's quite a bit of material in the 19  le was sunimoned to 8 mecting in November of 2008 to his
20 brief from the church rogording atate and federal low. 20  jmumedinte boss, Assistant City Manager Laurn Huffinnn, i
21 Theydid not bring that up. The scope of your 21 [ora meeting with Randy Phillips, Car Conley and other ;
22  jurisdiction is strictly limited (o the zoning code 22  pepresentatives of the church to talk about religious i
23 itself. 23 assembly. ]
24 And it is disconcerting that there is no 24 The — the idea of achieving the outdoor 1
25  sensitivily, no — no sense of concern that people are 25  amphitheater had nircady been discussed publicly for 3
3
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over a year. I've been doing land development faw for
over 30 years in this city. And there's only one reason
that you go see the assistant city manger over Greg
Guemscy. And that's because stalf is not giving you
the answer you want, You're going over thelr heads,
One month later Car] Conley sends the
setup jetter. And then a week later you get the ¢-mail
back from Mr. Guemnsey. They had been beavily involved
in formulating and laying out the strategy fom the
Ect-g0. So--and they were involved in preparing the
first draft of the restrictive covenant.
A ivs ofl taid out — this was all
planned out many years ago. They arc not innocent
victims, They knew cxactly what they were doing,
Also, in March 2004 the appellant sent a
letter to the church asking them to please not build the
amphitheater. We were in litigntion with the city, We
said it would be — it would be a terrible thing to
build the amphithcater and then have our appeal heard by
this body and have those permils reversed. They went
ahead anyway. They assumed the risk. And that risk is
ulso eimbedded in the code,
Sothe 3! calls, I don't care it's 75
dBA. That has no applicable — we're not going (o get
into the sound ordinance. That's not really applicable.
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memo. Staff has refused to forward it to you, Thcysaq N

there was no decision (here, there was nothing to
review, nothing to appeal. Well, since then the city
staff relied upon it to dismiss the lawsuit, Then they
have censed requiring temporary use permits in SF-3,

We ace asking you to direct staff to
forward that appeal to this body. We have a right to be
heard because it's being implemented and it being
respected. And it's important becavse it applied
city ~ I'm wrapping up, Mr. Chairman — and ar some
other decision made. It did not comply with 25-19 —
197, which was a reform passed by the City Council sfier
the travesty of this event,

And we ask you to reverse the decision
I've talked sbout earlier, We think that they've been
granted extreme special privilees. There's only four
outdoor amphitheaters in the city of Austin, They've
got one of them, no public hearings.

We think that it's not inling with 2 RR
rumlarea. By definition RR is rural choracteristics.
A 1500-seat outdoor amphitheater is certainly not a
residential rura! use. And we think that the - that
there is no doubt that the code prohibits this activity,

And [ oppreciate your consideration. We
do ask — | think T'm suppased to have n big finale
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But there have been almost 200 calls made to 311, You
have n sompling in your materials regarding people
complaining about hearing it in their hownes,

Idon't care what the dBA is. if people
can hear it in thetr homes, it's oo loud, peried.
Now -- and you can find that in Exhibit 9,

Now the other thing that, again, is not
within the scope of your jurisdiction but you should be
mindful of the change st stafl hias macde under the
sound ondinance. Look at Exhibit 20. It stats off’
with an e-mail to me from Mr. Lloyd regarding the — it
is now a residence. Even Mr, Guemsey adinitted that.

Well, turn a couple pages and you'll see
the December 2011 c-mail to me from Mr. Lloyd and — who
has checked with everybody else and we were asstred that
they could not operate without a sound permit because
thcy were not a residence. Talk about being thrown
under the bus multiple times, that's what we're feeling
with staff continuing to change.

There's a reason that outdoor
cntertainment is strictly limited under the zoning code
to a few commercial districts nnd still requires
conditional use permit because it lias significant
impacts that we are now experiencing.

So we appealed that November 18, 2013
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here - to make this right. Ul be happy to answer any
quesiions you tmay have.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. Thank you,
We close the public hearing now,

Se I've got a few questions both for
LifeAustin and for the appeliants, And I guess — you
kttow, what — what's come up | think it's clearly a
matier of scale. I guess [ don't feel as though outdoor
religious assembly would be objected ona - on a
compatible basis,

But there's a lot of — you know, there's
un astonishing amount of komeowners in here that clearly
ore affected or they wouldn't be here,

How many — how manry — how many events do
you have during the — during the month? Can someboly
tefl me that?

MR. BROUGHTON: We don' bave a set
muher,

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Come up io the
microphone, please.

MR BROUGHTON: Yes, sir. 1 be happy
to. [believe we've had 17 events since July, We don't
have a set number,

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Do you have an outdoor
service every Sunday?
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MR. BROUGHTON: I'msony?

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Do you have an outdoor
service every Sunday?

MR. BROUGHTON: We have not stared those
yel. We anticipate doing so, yes, sir.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: And — and what times of
day do you have these cvents or the days during the
week? When do -- whien do — when do these occur the
ones you've had and the ones you plan to have on your
schedule?

MR. BROUGHTON: Many of them —

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Give us —giveus an
idea.

MR. BROUGHTON: Okay. Il try to. Many
of them —

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Having hemona —ona
Sunday, you know, | guess is — if you're not having
them on 2 Sunday, then 1 guess it's - it's imporiant
that we have an understanding of that.

MR. BROUGHTON: Some -- yes, Some of them
ure on Sunday, yes, sir. Some of them are on other
days, Thursday, a Friday. You know, we have church
cvent — we have events at our church throughout the
week, We have regular Wednesday services.

We at times have cvents in the
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message.
MR. BROUGHTON: Well --

you'll allow me. So -- and L-- [ guess [ would also
make the comment that a fundraiser that raises 227,000
dollars regardless of how sympathetic I might be to the
particular, you kmow, recipient is — it speaks to a
just a profoundly large event.

[ mncan = and there may be one or two
dostors that contribute. But | mean 1 think when
you're -- when you're starting to make — make — you
know, may have o venue that can -- that can create that
kind of profit to a - to a - to a charity of any kind
that's a foirly significant evenl. That's not - thal's
not u, you kmow, something that T would consider part of
religions assembly.

Okay. Questions for the applicants or
the — or the city? Ms, Hawthome?

MS. HAWTHORNE; 1 actually see smincone
from the sound office here and [ would like to nsk
guestions regarding your visit out there, 111
amn on the Board of Adjustinent. But 1 also live behind
Zilker Park and I live on n canyon behind Zilker Park.

And [ can tell you that my experience of

9
Page 72 ",V
CHAIR BURKHARDT: And1--and I guess i 4\1
that's how 1 would interpret it right now so - if ]
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amplitheater. There's — a lot of times it depends on
when we can get e particular artist to be part of cur
worship service. You know, they're only available at
certain times. And so that controls which day of the
week we would have the event.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: The material that was
passed out last — during the rebuttal clearly shows
what I would consider a commercial venue, And then
obviously the shirts, you know, speak to the same,

It's — the shirts that you've got on say Austin
Amphitheater. They don't say LifeAustin Church. 1
guess -

(Applause)

CHAIR BURKHARDT: [ really would like to
ask you-all to please not -- not applaud, It's — no
matter who says what I'd appreciate it if we all
mainlain silence,

MR. BROUGHTON: Okay. I mean if you'll --
if you -

CHAIR BURKIJARDT: I--1 - lunderstand.
ButI.- I'see what ] sce. Itis -- in small print it
may say LifeAustin. But -

MR. BROUGHTON: Yes, sir.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: — the message is — is
not 4 warship message. It's a -- it's a commercial
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Fun Fun Fun Fest when living all the way by Zilker Park
and - and hearing neighber complaints almost all the
way to 360 on the noise from Fun Fun Fun Fest, how does
Fun Fun Fun Fest rate at a dB level at the property line
of the venuc?

MR. MURRAY: I'm David Murmay, City of
Austin Music -

MS. HAWTHORNE: Thank you.

MR. MURRAY: As Mr. Guemnsey stated
eatlicr, this is really more 1 think sbout the land use.

But I'll try and answer your question.

MS. HAWTHORNE: It's just a curiosity,

MR. MURRAY: Fun Fun Fun is allowed 85
decibels at the property line.

MS. HAWTHORNE: And it's pretty
interesting because in one day of Fun Fun Fun { actually
got more complaints than two weekends of ACL. Ii's
pretty interesting. And it's one thing to fike Pearl
Jam. It's another thing for Pearl Jam to be in your
living roon.

And it's — and Drake and [ are not
Iriends, Neither — the Mouse, whatever that was, we're
not fiiends cither. So while I can like something and
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1 wanl to go outside or not, whether or not [ have to have 1 it. Andso can you walk me through the due process?
2 {le'TV on or the stereo on and I still can hear it 2 Like what mechanism {ollowing your -- you hit enter and
3 That -- that's -- that's what happens to 3 sent the e-mail. What ipechanism was there for an appeal
4 me with Blues on the Green. That's only every two 4 had they made the request timely?
5 weeks, you knaw, for o while, [ mean it just -- you 5 MR. GUERNSEY: As 1 said, most of these
6  get-you get lired, You just get tired. I mean - 6 detenninations are really brought by a property owner or
T and I think that's -- that's part of the issue. And 7  anaogent for a property owner asking or inquiring. Say
8 think thet the code docs talk about on enclosed 8 ahome - an Office Depot wants to move in a location,
9 structure. And [ would really like to see that - that 9 is (his, you know, general retail sales timited use, can
10 perhaps that we close the public hearing and that 10 [ opcrate there, do we need o letter Som a bank so that
11 perhaps -- 11 whenane and my staff would write that T might respond my
12 CHAIR BURKHARDT: We've closed it. 12 guess is permmnent use.
13 MS. HAWTHORNE: -- we — we go ahead and 13 It's nol common necessarily for the
14 postpone this item and let the partics talk is really 14 adjacent property owner that's next door that may have
15 whatwould like to see. 15  on interest in that panticular issue. And it was our
18 CHAIR BURKHARDT: We have other 16  practice that therc was no notice required until council
17  cornmissioners that would like to - 17  clanged the erdinances afier all this took place.
18 MS. HAWTHORNE: Oh, { know. ButI'm - 18 MR. GOFF: Okay.
19 TI'm-- 19 MR. GUERNSEY: So whether it was by
20 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Wegotto go 20 c-mail, whether it was somebody walking into what we :
21 MS. HAWTHORNE: I's my tum. Right? 21 call owr Development Assistance Center ag a :
22 CHAIR BURKHARDT: 1 understand. don't 22 representative making inquiry, you know, homeowner, can |
23 knowifthat was g — 23 Ibuild this garage in my backyard, build a — b
24 M8, HAWTHORNE: My turn. 24 MR. GOFF: Right,
25 CHAIR BURKHARDT: -- mation or not or 25 MR. GUERNSEY: ~ my backyard, you know, !
§
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1 proceeding with making -- 1 all the way through to commercial use of, you know, what ?_!
2 MS, HAWTHORNE: Huh-uh. 2 s ancillary or whet is part of the principal use, that i
3 CHAIR BURKHARDT: - a motion, 3 wos a very common practice, 3
4 Commissioner Valadez? L MR. GOFF: So [ think that the answer then f
5 MS. HAWTHORNE: | -- and now 'm done §  jsthere — there wasnt a mechanism for them to know ;
6 faking. s that whnt you just said? 6  beeause there's no requirement to notice. And so--
7 MR. GOFF: Unless she has more comments. 7 MR. GUERNSEY: That's correct,
8 [didintermupt, 8 MR. GOFF: And so maybe thot's why council }
9 MS. HAWTHORNE: Oh, please, Okay. 9 later amended the code in order to ereale that so it :
10 TU-1 will stop. ‘10 would fill in that duc process gap.
11 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Good. All right. 11 MR. GUERNSEY: Yes. [believe—1I
12 Mr. Goff? 12 believe that to be tue because under certain use L
i3 MR. GOTF: Sollhaves—I wrotc dovma 13 determinations every day there are permits that are 1
14 pumber of questions. And so I'm happy to stop halfway 14 issued by the city to allow reslaurants, office
15  between and go to semebody clse as well. But ~ and 15  building, churches, homes, £
16 then [ also have comments to my other board inembers so 16 And with every permit that's issued there
17  we can deliberate in public on this one. 17  jsa usc delermination that's made. There are not
18 But the first one’s for Mr. Guemsey. So 18  notices sent to adjacent property owners of those things
19  thisigon the c-mail 1~ from my view I think -- [ 19  hecause they are deemed to be similarcode. Andso it
20 belicve that I agree with your assertion that you do 20 waschanged afler this. But the issue before you
21 have the authority to determine land use rnd that's well 21 tonight is really nbout the facts that existed prior to
22 within your rights ns the director of the department, 22 those ordinance changes.
23 But [ have trouble understanding how an 23 MR. GOFF: Qkay. So to my other board
24 c-mail that wasn't made wailable to anyone could allow 24 members I kind of see two issucs here. One is the
25  for an appen] that — also the right of people o appeal 25  question of the right to an appeal and the due process
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1 question, The other is the land use issucs. 1 gl arcund the world. Ive seen calhedrals everywhere,
2 And I'd like lo nsk one more question 2 [I've been 1o the Sistine Chapel. Tve been to Rome,
3 about the land use issues and T have a few more 3 [ve scen some of these religlous churches. So Idon't
4 questions, 1defer to the chair for when I can ask 4 want lo use tax cxempt status as o blanket to just -
5 them 5 MR, GOFF: Falr enough.
6 But on = on the fand usc anc for 6 MR. VON OHLEN: ‘That's my political
T Mr. Kleeutn I didn't see in your filed testimony 7T sintement right there, |
& anything about the description ol uses, 25-2-641 which 8 CHAIR 8URKHARDT: Comimissioner Bailey had
8 describes religious assembly. And thal's the onc where 9 aquestion.
10 il soys a property {ax exemption is prima facie evidence 10 MR. VON OHLEN: Sure. i
11 ofreligious assembly use, 11 MS. BAILEY: 1havea question for b
12 My understanding is this site haa that tax 12 Mr. Guemsey. | just want a clarification on e point ]
13  cxemplion, which 1 wonder how you would respond to that 23 that you made and then something that was said by the
14  and how you would recomunend that the board consider fhat 14 LifeAustin Church.
15  senlence in the code, 15 You were saying that — that the
16 MR. KLEEMAN: Well, I dont think that's 16  mnphitheater is a building becouse it had a building
17  the controlling provision, this definition. And il you 17  permit. Yet they stated that they hove at least 200
18 ook at the definition, it's limited to organized 18 lown seats where they do these passes that are outside
19 religious education and worship, pericd. And it does 19  of that building and outside of that amphitbeater area
20  not inclede community recreation and other things, 20 although they look at the stage.
21 What we're talking about is outdoor 21 How would you classify that?
22 activilics which — and if you go to — 22 MR. GUERNSEY: That's still part of that
23 MR. GOFF: Sure. 23 religious assembly activity. H
24 MR, KLEEMAN: - swap the numbers here - 24 MS. BAILEY: Buf — becouse you were Ig
25  25-2-49iC, which says that lund use chart of what you 25  saying the amphitheater is a building?
Page 79 Page 81 1
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1 canand cannot do is subject to all the more restrictive 1 MR. GUERNSEY: The — the point that [
2  provisions, And this is one of those. And il says 2 understand from the appellants was that this is purely b
3 outdoor religious assembly, that you can't get a 3 an outdoor activity, it's not enclosed. That
4 temporary usc permit far it in these zoning districts, 4 amphitheater building does have roof, docs have walls,
& MR. GOFF: Okay. And so[--Iread the 5 does hove enclosed spaces in it, i
& scction about (he temporary use. It seems without 6 And so— 3
7  siating how 1 am weighing the whole matter the most 7 MS, BAILEY: Butnot the - §
8  problematic thing for your -- your case is therc is a 8 MR. GUERNSEY: — mny point ~ 5
9 tox exemption for the whole site, including the 9 MS, BAILEY: - lawn. 3
10 amphitheater. 10 MR. GUERNSEY: My —
11 MR. VON OHLEN: But I don't cven want (o i1 MS. BAILEY: The lawn is not.
12 go there because personally myself I feel everybody 12 MR. GUERNSEY: The lawn is pot. They do
13 wants to have it — I'm going — I'm going to go there. 13 purk outside.
14 People want to have a scparation of church and siate, 14 MS. BAILEY: So they —
15 church and politics. We have that mix-up going on so 15 MR. GUERNSEY: You know, the walkway
16 much right now personally myselfI fecl churches should 16 MS. BAILEY: --sell -
17 belaxed because some of the most prime properties that 17 MR, GUERNSEY: - is outside, There -~
18  wehave in the couniry has gone to churches and some of 18 MS. BAILEY: They sell seating outside on
19  the prime cvents, fundmising evenis. 19  thelawn? He said that they hed 200 lawn scating passes
20 I've seen that church. I've seen the — 20 that they would sell.
21  thechurch and I've been to the church PromiseLand on 71 MR. GUERNSEY: So -- so my peint is the
22  Bumet Road, They're massive structures on prime land. 22  code docs not speake to specifically an enclosed space
23 And1-and I don't mean fo pick on them, you know, 23 with regards to the definition of religious assembly, |
24 being as I raveled all sround the world. 24 was merely pointing out that the amphitheater is a
25 As my Ranger brother over here I've been 25  byilding. It could be used as n Backyard and be very
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much a commercin! event.

But the uses that were described to me and
the way that my office permiticd them it was for
religious nssembly use. You know, we've had churches in
Ouk Hill that have taken place in bars Like the old
Silver Dollar. ‘There's churcites that take place in
mavie theaters. There's cburches that lake place in --
in — in all sorts of venue, | think there was
Catfish Parlor or something like this I was told that
was even a church,

This happens to be an amphithenter. 1t's
an amphitheater building. But the use is religious
assembly und that's how I interpret it.

MR. VON OHLEN: 1 may, Websters defines
a building — the definition -- and that's -- { mean
really common sense would tell inc that, if we're going
to be questioning a building — because [ can - [ can
tell you sight now you got ta build - pull a building
permit for a retaining wall. You got to bill - pull &
building permit for a fence. You got to build a
permit — pull o buitding permit for many, many
dilTerent things.

That doesn't make u retaining wall o
building, ‘That doesn't make a fence o building. Hold
on. Hearme out, Greg. But when it — when it gets io
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know, 1 agree with you to a certain extent, But where
we're at now is the massive impact of this one.

Now one of the things that | caution
everybody on is we have 1o take a look at this in the
context of what was in place at the time, And I will
concede that in place at the tine you had the authority
{0 make a judgment based upon your best experience,
You're only lnunan, You have a different opinion than
me. Sometimes we agree, Sometimes we don't.

Thal's just the way it is. But at that
point in time you did have the ability to make those
decisions on whether it comes back or not. 50 -- but
we're here today ond we've got an amphitheater.

One of the things that concemned me and
that bothered me a Little bit was that a lelter was seat
out to the church telling the church look, we got
problems, hold off on it. I've pot a copy of the letter
here in my packet. Ijust sat in my office today and
read 186 pages not counting what I found up here when |
got here,

Okay? So Iknow there's ~ therc's more
1san one letter and exchange — and I'm not getting on
you now. But there was an exchange 1o the church saying
hold off on this, we'te in Litigation, wait a little
bit, you know, if you build, proceed, you proceed on
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a point to where people are starting to question the
definition of it tmy common sense is, well, Webster said
the definition of the building is o structure such as a
home, hospital, school, etcgicra with - with a roof and
walls, usually roofed and walled structure built for
permanent use or as a dwelling,

So I know what you can say. Where you're
Boing to go is where the loophole says it doesa't say
enclosed walls. And an amphitheater does have a roof
and it does have walls, And that's where -- where we
sort of got here.

MR. GUERNSEY: And - and board member,
V'm - I'm really going back to the definition. I¥sin
the land development code under zoning regulations and
that the activities take place in the main building, the
multipurpose building and sanctuary building are the
same aclivities that take place outside,

And that is where I'm going with this
being a religious assembly usc. I've already stated 1
think there are mumerous things that happen outside that
are considered religious assembly, whether — whether it
has to do with Easter sunrise services, weddings outside
and numerous events which [ wasn't --

MR, VON OHLEN: 1 agree with you, Greg.
But I think where we're at now is we're -- we're -- you
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your own at your own risk.

And the church basically responded back to
the neighborhood association saying we're moving ina
timely manner, That doesn't sound very brotherly to me.
Okay? And so we're now — the attorey mentioned, you
know, stuff — people being thrown under the bus.

This has already been to cowrt and il's
come back lo us. And I feel like we're being thrown
under the bns because we're going to have to make
this - in my 12 years of sitting on this dais this is
the hardest case, the most convoluted case, the most
confusing case l've ever seen,

And normnlly — you know, and — and Fma
former Ranger, sir. Normally it's, you know, let's make
a command decision and go. And this one has really got
me thrown, And I'm going to suppert and second
Melissa's motion. Hut [ think we still need o have =

CHAIR BURKHARDT; I -

MR. YON OHLEN: - somc more discussion up
here.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Yeszh. I'mnot -

MR. VON OHLEN: You know --

CHAIR BURKHARDT: I'm not —

MR. VON OHLEN; - more guidance.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: I'nnot ready to take a
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1 notion yet. We have olher commissioners who have been 1 MR GUERNSEY: Which by ils very nature inq /

2 trying to speakas well, 2 the definition of the Austin code of what o religious qg

3 MR, VON OHLEN: I understand. 3 assemblyis it's difficult for me to overcome knowing

4 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Mx. Leighton-Buewell? 4 that there arc churches all over the city which arc

5 MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: . Guemnsey, 50 - &  doing related events that — that go beyond the strictly 4

6 80 you make the determination that the facility as it & worship= |

7 was presented 10 you was religious assembly. Is that ) MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Okay.

8  comect? 8 MR, GUERNSEY: -- and education.

9 MR. GUERNSEY: That’s comect. 9 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: So relative to that i
10 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: And a5 a part of 10  the restrictive covenant typically takes n uso and more 3
11  what we're tasked with is deciding whether or not that 11  narowly defines it because of potential obnoxious or — %
12 wasa correct judgment on your part or not. 12  or- oruses that might be construed to not be as 3
13 So much like buildings there are times 13  compatible. Is that - is that correct? ‘
14 thata building is an office building but it kas an 14 MR. GUERNSEY: Yeah. A restrictive
15 auditorium as part of that. And so even though some of 15  covenant by nature is placing additional conditions -

16 it's office there's going to be parts of it that are 16 MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Okay.

17  treated differently under building codes for egress and 17 MR. GUERNSEY: -- on that land, in this E

18  fire walls and other things Fke that, You can -~ that 18 case the extra parking requirements and I think that -

19  there are sometimes within one structure, within one 19  amphithester with — with the main sanctuary, There

20  thing that there -- there's different aspects that necd 20 were some restriclions on how we deal with traffie,

21 1o be treated differently because of the nature of it. 21 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: But—

22 So — and of course what we're dealing 22 MR. GUERNSEY: And then there were some

23 with is a land use, not n building code issue but 23 addition! restrictions thot were offered to me back in

24 it's - a site development code. So at — at zo point 24 two thousand - weYe willing to do o covenant, It came

25  did you consider the smphitheater or some of the aspects 25 upin2008. There were concems that were mised by the
Page 87 Page 89

1 ofthis to potentially be an outdoor entertainment? 1 public. [think they were taken to heart by staff, my

2 MR. GUERNSEY: No, because it was very 2 staff at the time. 'We consulted the church to try to |

3 clear from the discussions that T had with the charch 3 guess put those in to further namow the restriction on

4 that the usey inside would be the same that are outside 4 that property.

5 andthe-—- 5 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Well, but it also

6 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Which would be 6 looked like it was including definitions of things like

7 worship based? 7 the amphitheater and such as thot because, if they

B MR. GUERNSEY: Would be worship based and 8  weren't defined within the restrictive covenant saying,

% those eclivitics may take place out. 1 guess [have — 9 by the way, these are part of that too, that people ola
10  Idohave n concem that some of the issues brought by 10  reasonshle mind might say that's not part of -- you
11  theappeliant that a church can only be used for 11 kmow, tha's an outdoor vecreation thing.

12 relipious worship or education. 12 So was thers - was (here a reason that

13 I think there are fundmising events. 13 those were - it scems like that's more inclusive, not

14  There's sheltering of those that are homeless. ] think 14  more limiting. You know, it - by the way, and

1S there are — whether it's benefits for — for the Oak 15 cverything else that they aske for is included. Is -

16  Hill Pinnacle fire through bake snles or garage sales, 16 yousce where —

17  whether they're findraising cvents that help pay for the 17 MR. GUERNSEY: [ lock — I looked at it :
18 fucility itself, whether there's religious nctivities 18 being more resirictive. The building pennits that were
19  that — that are related to the youth groups that are 19  issued, the site plans thot were issued were for E
20  there or, you know, Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, giving — 20 religious assembly use. {
21 MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: So you scca wider 21 MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Okay.

22 blanket basically? 22 MR. GUERNSEY: And this - you know,

23 MR, GUERNSEY: I~ sece a wider blanket. 23 covenants 88 they come along, if LifeAustin gocs on o

24 And then I po back to that primea facie evidence. 24  become a different kind of church or another kind of

25 MR. LEIGITTON-BURWELL: Okay. 25 church comes in, those restrictions would put that

ken@kenowen.com * www.kenowen.com
800.829.6936 * 512.472.0880

(Pages 86 to 89)




24

W oo Ay nob ot N

NN NN R R R R R o
U ob W KO WDAdn s N RO

Page 90

notice on the owner as soon as they purchase lbe
property that there are some additional conditions that
run with this Iand.

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: The final picce of
this for me right now at least is that one of their
worship models or one of their outreach models is 1o
reach people that might not cotne to church but would
come to a concert, an outdoor entertainment and -- and
through that they're able to then pull them into the
fold and speak to themn in a meaningful way.

1If the - the avenue for doing that was
motocross to reach the motecross crowd who, you know,
may or may not be clwrch going — 1 don't know —-ora
NASCAR meewny with a band in the middle, would you
consider that to be part of a church regandless of the
nature of it?

MR. GUERNSEY: 1-T'm ot sure that I
could answer a question —

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Qwned by the
cliurch, used by the church as outreach.

MR. GUERNSEY: Just — just because n
facility is owned by a church docs not mean that it
qualifies as a religious assembly. An example was in my
example [ gave back to you with the Hyde Park Quarries
they have basically a arge recreational site, It's
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patishioners 1o their church. [ was told that it was
going to be used, this building, amphitheater building,
would be used for a religious assembly use,

And that's what I relied in making my
detertnination. And that's how the city approved the
sile plan and building pennits involved.

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: And I would agree
with my colleaguc that an smnphitheater by definition is
not a building. But...

MR. GUERNSEY: It speaking to the use.
Whether it's - it's a senuon outside on -- on Easter
morning, whether it's in an amphitheater, whether it's
in their chiapel or within the main building itself, [
was told and we issied permits for a religious assemnbly
use.

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: OQkay,

MR. GUERNSEY: Repardless of the structure
it's in or if it took place out in the field.

MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: In this case. But
there is a threshold, You could see that there would be
a threshiold of use that you would probably not consider
part of religicus nssembly even though they might?

MR. GUERNSEY: There might be a point
where [ would have to lake a look ot that.

MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Okay.
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owned by the church, It's not a religious assembly use

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: But 'm saying that
they're -

MR, GUERNSEY: And -

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: - clahning lo usc
it as outreach.

MR. GUERNSEY: And - and -

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: [s that okay for
you then to — would you consitler that ~

MR. GUERNSEY: I guess [ would have lo
consider it. I'm not sure if  would land there, To -
for me to just give you an answer just like that saying
NASCAR racing is maybe considered by some as a
religion —

MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Sotherciss—

MR, GUERNSEY: | ={'n -

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: - threshold?

MR. GUERNSEY: — not sure | would be
nble ~ be able to go there, But when you're telling me
that you're going to use a building for a religious use
for worship and — and wlat type of worship takes place,
that did cot go to my determination in 2008,

They did not tefl me how they were going
to recruit parishioners, Dvring the site plan [ was not
aware thal -- you know, how they were going to recruit
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MR GUERNSEY: And that's not to say that
they might be doing an activity tomorrow that 1 would
Eay that is not religious assembly. You know, if AC/DC
were to start playing onc weekend and Acrosmith the next
and they start basically turning a profit and that
purely be a music venue, then { would prebably bave a
change of heart and say that that is not in accordance
with being n religious assembly use if it turned in to
be something ather than a religions asscmbly use as -
as basically told to the city.

MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: So il's kiid of
the — peligious assembly use is the get out of jail
free cand for you?

MR. GUERNSEY: It's how it cotnplics with
the code.

MR LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Okay.

CHATR BURKHARDT: So Mr. Guernsey, reat
quick, this is in a residential aren. [ mean isnt
there a red flag that poes up? 1 mean, you know, it's
the city that — the problem that people have with the
city is that the individual's vights seem lo be
constantly abridged by - by determinations like your
own.

Whether - whether il was an bonest
interpretation of not, it still seems to me that there

——— e — — e -
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should have been ~ should have been something that went
up and muy — ey bave caused a littlc more
circumspegtion, litile more introspection on this case

than it scems to bave potten.

I'mean I just — 1 mean | - [ understand
your rationale. | understand the — the rationsle for
the subsequent modifications to the code to fix it or to
make it right. T-- I just — [ just think this is -~
this is one of (hose cases that - one of the toughest
cases.

T agree with Commissioner Von Ohlen.
‘There's — you know, I mean it's — it's just bad from
the get-go. 1mean it just seems to be — seems to be
profoundly abridging the — you know, the bulk of the
citizens' rights that — that are (ax paying citizens
around this facility.

MR. GUERNSEY: And [ think a dilficult
challenge for me, chair, is that religious assembly is
permitted. If -- if this was a public Kigh school you
could —~ theoretically you could buill a stadium for 2
charter school and that would be penmitted, too. [
woull have no choice but to grant a permit in a rural
residential district for that type of use.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: With that
interpretation -
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building coverage Is -- is around three.

It's difficult for ~ for me to make a use
determination simply to say they used all of the lot
that they could under our codes ond (hat would somehow
change the use. IFthat - I go back to the use again.
If that use is permitted, they're single-family
howneowners that use all of their site and 1 can'l say
that it's siill not a single-Family home.,

If a church uses alt of its siteor a
portion of ils site and it's sl a religlous assembly
vs¢, I kind of stuck that it's a seligious assembly
use because I'm looking at the use of the property,
whether that extends to that amphitheater building or
the main building or the chapel building,

MS. HAWTHORNE: I carry my refigious
assembly use inside. So I'm good to go right here.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Thank you. Commissioner
Von Ohlen, if you're going to make a motion, we've
got —

MR. VON OHLEN: No. No. No, I'm not. We
alrcady went down that rond, Thave a question. Ihave
a question.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Okay.

MR. VON OHLEN: Okay? Because there'sa
lot of caveals that are going 1o come wilb that motion,
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MR. GUERNSEY: But with -- by what the
code says [ think in this case this is o very large
church on a very large tract of land. And staff does
not have the discretion, whether moking a use
determination for 8 small parcel or a large parce, to
say that i( would be diffecent given the scale of a
site,

CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. Thank you,

MR. YON OHLEN: Mr. Chairmaa?

CHATE BURKHARDT: Connnissioner Hawthorne,
yeah.

MS. HAWTHORNE: So !~ 1 guess that | -
1 just had questions, And — and 5o [ ook ot the
definition of RR zoning and the size of lot you have to
have in RR zoning. So —s0 a sile for a home is one
acre. So in proportion the church may be 55 or 63 or
whatever however components.

But RR zoning talks sbout mass and scale,
Did you ever consider the size of the smphitheater and
the accessory provisions in providing some kind of
balance or key in - just in your thought just asa
curiosity?

MR, GUERNSEY: Idid. Imean this tract
is subject to SOS. As I sald, the imperious cover on
the property is less than 15 percent. | think the
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Mr. Chair.

But I have a question for the -- for the
epresentative for the neighborhood association. There
was a comment that you made, sir, that I think - matter
of fact, I think your exact words were to rescind the
amphitheater site plan only.

What did you mean by that?

MR, KLEEMAN: The -- the site plan has
three structures on it.

MR. VON OHLEN: Cormect.

MR. KLEEMAN: There's thechapel. There's
the facility they have now and the amphitheater. We're
no! wanting (o affect the other two buildings. We have
no abjection to that in the neighborhood.

It's just as to -- and that ties in with
some of the langunge in the restrictive covenant that
unless that gets reversed by y'all and then fall back on
Chapter 245 and say that they have a grandfather right
to have this outdeor amphitheater it is complicated.
They've crealed a lot of checks and balances, belis and
suspenders to protect,

And just as o point of clarification, the
restrictive covenant says 3500-seal amphitheater, And
finally, let me just make this point because I've
listened to all this, The interpretation of any code or
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any statutc requires you to give cffect to every
provision in there.

The only way you can concur with
Mr. Guemnsey's interpretation is to ignore 921C or to
ignore it as if the word religious is not in there,

Ant - and you cannot do that. You have to give effect
to it. What docs that mean? So you just can'{ say it's
religious assembly and there we go. You have to read
the whole code and you have to give it cffect,

MR. VON OFHLEN: [ have another question
for you,

MR. KLEEMANM: Yes, sir.

MR. VON OHLEN: As you're representing the
neighborhood here — and [ probably know the answer o
this but I'n going to ask anyhow.

Say hypothetically that that is rescinded
but they've alrendy ot an amphitheater there. And they
could go and get o teinporary use permit or whatever they
need to do for it and stilf have their gatherings nnd
you are still going to have a problem. And this is why
I was moving towards this other imotion before [ was
chastised.

But my guestion is — no, that's all
right. It's all good, My question is from the
neighborbood what is it - [ mean T understand the
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as other possibly ways of mediating this problem?

MR. KLEEMAN: Yes. Yes, we have, And, in
fact, we've proposed those to the church before this
hearing. And -- and we recognize the politicsl reality
that it's highly unlikely that the building's going 1o
be taken down,

But there arc stiil a number of legal
issues. It's an open question whether they can even get
a temporary use permit if our appeal is beard by y'all.
But I think that — and Tve advocated this for somne
time, for over a year,

1 think what we need is a zoning case to
address these frequency issues because right now
Reverend Phillips indicated he wanted (o do a hundred
events d year. And it's staggering, singgering. So
it's n matter of controlling the number of events, the
hours of operations and addressing the sound mitigation.

I think that has to be worked out, So far
all we've been told is asking not to be heard in our
tomes is a high standard. That's the response we've
gotten so for. So we have reached out when the cutdoor
music venue pemtit was underway. We asked for the
meeting. They said they weren't interested in tolking
to us,

Before this hearing we asked for a
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predicament, Bul even if - if that was overturned and
then it came back and then it gets the illegal
non-conforming use possibility you still got an
emphitheater. You still got loud music.

So where we're at here today and - and
T've always tried to reach a compromise. Nobody gets a
hundred percent of what they want. We split the baby.
But, you know, [ want everybody to start thinking,
Let's not -~ not be thinking about mny and me and what 1
want. Okay?

We're going to have to start thinking
about if true — truly, in fact, the church is serious
about community - community, yon know, and gathering,
Bringing people around and, of course, the neighborhood
is -~ is okay with the clhurch being there, they just
didnt really like the — the amphitheater aspect of it,
there's going to need to be some sort of compromise here
because it can't really be undone.

f mean what's -- whbat's done is done. And
I'm pretty angry about it. Personally I felt the church
probably should have waited until you went through
[itipation. You know, and [ am a pro-preperties rights
guy. So1--1sympathize with lhe residents, But |
also sympathize with them.

Have you — has your group given thought
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meeting. And we were told inside the houss, that's a
really high standard to meet, But we will continue
because we know at soine point it has to be. So we are
very open {o — L don't want to do this the rest of my
life. 1want a permonent peacs ireaty.

MR. VON QHLEN: Tunderstand. |
understand. -

MR. KLEEMAN: But yes, we are very open to
that.

MIL. VON OHLEN: Thank you.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Cosumissioner Goff? You
wanted to follow up or not?

MR. GOFF: Yeah,

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Okay.

MR. GOFF: Few more questions. ['m somry,
yeah. Fitst one — one 1o you. You talked about the -
the text in the code that says that & temporary use ina
rural residential ~ do you remember what that says
again, o temporary — a religious, patriotic, efcetera,
clcetera —

MR, KLEEMAN: Festival, benelit.

MR. GOFF: Yeah.

MR. KLEEMAN: All the -- anything similar
that altracts a mass gathering of people, yes.

MR. GOFF: And it says that's 2 tlemporary

i
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use. Right?

MR, KLEEMAN: Correct.

MR. GOFF: So how does that apply to an
amphithestcr that they use every Sunday? That docsn't
seem very temporary. A church meets every Sunday.

MR, KLEEMAN: That's correct.

MR. GOFF: It scems like it's part of the
natute again of being a church just whether or not the
church has watls.

MR. KLEEMAN: Well, I think - let me
answer that in - in - in two ways. What -- what the
council tells us what this temporary use permit is is
something you issue for an activity that's not allowed
as a principal or accessery use.

MR. GOFF: Right.

MR. KLEEMAN: Right? Because if it was
allowed, you don't need a temporary use permit. Council
tells us this specifically before this was issucd.

And I'm trying te think what the second
point of your question was.

MR. GOFF: Yeah. Soifit -- ifit's just
a regular use that a church with or witlrout walis
they're daing this every Sunday I don't understand why
you think this section of the code applies since, s you
just stated, temporary usc is something that's outside
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other nclivities don'l occur inside, the Boy Scouts or
whatever and of course they do. And we all support
that,

Bul again, that goes back to community
standands. We've crossed o threshold here. This isn't
Enster moming mass once a year, This isn't -- you
remember the photo they bad of the montage of all the -
the little bands snd alf that. Those aren't pennanent
structures. Those are temporary and they're very small
in scale.

This is something very different. And so
what you have is the nosc of the camel in the tent. You
scc the progression and the change in the definition.
Mr. Guernsey said well, it's a religious assembly. But
the: religious assembly as defined at the starting point
is very different than the restrictive covenaat,

It has morphied to swallow up these
entertainment activities. And so you have to separate
the indoor and the cutdoor. And the definition in
llie ~ in the temporary use permit language melds very
closely and appropriately with the definition off being
in a building,

Otherwise, you think about it. You have a
vacant lot next door ta yau at your home then anybody
claiming for it 1o be a religious assembly usc can do
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of what the normal use is.

My reading -- and I'd be happy for you
correct me with what your reading s -- is that the
temporary use permit would be necessary if you were
meeting in a ficld that - or somewhere that wasa't
always a religious assembly, You wanted o put up teats
and have a revival in a parking lot of the mall, that
would be the - need to have a temporary use penmit for
a patriotic or religious assembly.

But here where the property is prima facie
a religious assembly because it has the tax exemption it
seerns Ihat if it's unnecessary to have a temporary use
permit for the primary use that already exists that's my
current reading of that.

And since you noted thal we have to apply
the whole code, 1 wanted to tell you my current reading
o -

MR, KLEEMAN: Yeah.

MR. GOFT: -- give you o chance to correct
me if you think Ive misinterpreted,

MR. KLEEMAN: Yeah. I think you're --
there's two -- onc is the uses and the activitics,

MR. GOFF: Uh-luh,

MR. KLEEMAN: And I disagree with
Mr. Guemsey that our proposition is that -- that these
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any sort of thing outdoors. 1 think that there's a good
reason wihty this ouldoor component is in there. And even
when it can be pennitted, it's still limited {0 50

peaple, not 1500 ot 3500. So those arc diffcrent

isstes.

MR. GOFF: I've ot one final question. 1
know other people have questions. And this is for
someone from the church both related to the nature of
the fundings or might be Mr. Capezzuti or might be Mr.
Weisbart becanse 110 skeptical of yalls citation of the
additional state and federal kaw because it seems like
we'te being asked by the appellants to comc up with a
way to define whint worship is.

And that makes me extremely uncomioriable.
And I'm sure that's why we're all — you know, would
like {0 see themn come to an agreement (ogether, want to
postpone this because that would be so much belter than
attempt fo define what worship is.

CHAIR BURKHARDT; Commissioner, [ didn't
see that the appellants were asking for that.

MR. GOFF: Well, they were because —

CHAIR BURKHARDT: No. Lactually felt
that the — actally, | - L actually felt that was the
case mado by - by the applicnal -- excuse me - by
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1 MR. GOFF; Well, I understand that somne 1 whistle. So this ~ even though the decibel level — \ H /
2 things arc entertainment and other things are worship 2 the point I'm trying to make is the reason the decibel q 9
3 and I'm uncoinfortable drawing that distinction, 3 level is being maybe measured and okay at the fence
4 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Yeah. 4 docsnlt tzke into account how it carries, how sound
5 MR. VON OHLEN: Well, religious music is 5  actually caries, E
6  big business. My — my douglter listens to religions - 6 It deesn't — it doesn't Lave to be real
7 MR. GOFF: | -- 7 loud to canry really far. So T think that's the problem 1
a MR. VON OHLEN: - rock all - 8 wehave with that, h:i
9 MR. GOFF: Yeah, ] CHAIR BURKHARDT: Commissioner Bailey?
10 MR. VON OHLEN: - the time. 10 MS. DAILEY: 1have a question for My,
1t MR. GOFF: Iunderstand that. And - 11 Guemsey, Chairman, and maybe for other people too. But
12 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Do you want it - do you 12 jt — it concems the restrictive covenant because that
13  wantit— 13 scems to be a big issue.
14 MR. VON OHLEN: Do you want it next door? 14 And I've been a city planner, T've been
15 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Do you want it next door 15 onneighborhood boards. Tve been on this board and
16 wyouand - 16 other boards. And a lot of times when it's something
17 MR. GOFF: Yeah. 17 like this where it's a more contentious type issuc the
18 CHAIR BURKHARDT: — your house'? 18  nuighberhoods are very involved in the restrictive
19 MR, GOFF: No. I--Iunderstand that 19 covenant. They don't usually et the applicant write it i
20 it's ~correct — a nuisance for the neighbors. You 20 for themselves because unintentionnl consequences happen
2L know, I'mjust trying to go by what the code Siys. 21 when that — when everyone's not involved. 3
22 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Sure. 22 And so 1 think that is something that li
23 MR. GOFF: So on the Religious Freedom 23 while we have trouble with —~ with drawing these lincs
24 Restoration Act I do think that ihe city tias every right 24 the restrictive covenant could be a tool. And I'm not
25 toregulate things like the decibel levels or the 25  even sure how we have to go about the modification of
Page 107 Page 109
1 parking on site or whatever clse. Like just because 1 that of working with e neighbochood to get -
2 ifsareligious assembly doesn't mean that they havea 2 occasional is not a definable word, you know, to get
3 de fucto right to do anything and claim that i's 3 something that's more concrete in the definitions and
4 worship. Right? 4 that
5 It — like it would be ~ it would be 5 I'm just - my question is: Why was the
&  greatif you had the no-car church and church say well, & neighborhood not invalved in the crafling of the
7 we - wedon't believe in cars. So we don't need 7 restrictive covepant?
8  parking. Well, you might sell it to the church who does 8 MR. GUERNSEY: I could not say whetlier my
9 have-- drive cars to church. You know? 9 staff was influenced or not by what the neighborhood
10 Clearly regulating decibel levels is 10  said as far as the langunge that went into the covenant.
11  something that's within the scope - I think that the 11 Yknow that [ worked with our law depariment in crafling
12 council later on following this issue regulated the -- 12 the language that's in that covenant and the -- I don't 1
13 you know, the amphitheater issue. But we have lo deal 13 see the covenant 8s being something that allows !
14 with the code prior to that. And I -- I just don't sce 14 something ndditional beyond what they could have done |1
15  how right now what they're doing despite the nuisance 15  even without the covenant, :1-
16  doesn't meet the code that was in place at the time. 16 I know that there's a difference of 1
17 MR. VON OHLEN: Well, commissioner, also 17 opinion certainly between the appeltants and myselr,
18 decibel level -- even though the decibel level is low — 18 But it was more of kind of boot straps being placed on ]
19  in Victnam the Victnamese, the Vict Cong used whistles 19 this to moke sure that in perpetuity there would be an i
20 o blow before they would on -- the whistle's not [oud 20 understanding on this property that there are some i
21 but youcould hearit. You could hear it down through 21 conditions that you would not pormally find on another
22 the valley. 22 church that would be in place to this property owner,
23 Is that not right, sir? 23 MS. BAILEY: I guess I still feel like the
2s MR. LACQUEMENT: That's right, 24 neighborhood was lell out of this discussion.
25 MR. VON OHLEN: You - and it's justa 25 MR, GUERNSEY: Idon% - I don® believe
R T e e e T T — o T e e e——
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that they were in a discussion where cach word wes
negotinted, | don't belicve Mr. Klezman was part of -
of that discussion with him, Mr. Metcalfe 1 know on
behalf of PromiseLand did work and talked with our law
department. But I think in the end { don't think that

it ~ it was ncgotiated word by word by -- with the
neighborhood.

MS. BAILEY: Yeah. Idon't necessarily
mean word by word. But the people that were going to be
nost impacted by the conditions that were being put on
this site were going to be the neighborhoed. And
usually when that's the cose the restrictive covenant is
something Uhat's agreed to where at the end sometines
you split the baby as but — but that it — it comes to
some sort of agreement on both sides.

Because there is a very large number of
affected parties that live around this chwrch that were
going {0 be affected by this amphitheater. Even if the
use is allowed, even if the decibels are nght usunlly a
testrictive covenant is the tool that you bring peace
with everybody.

And 1guess I - I mean I'm used 1o seting
the neighborhoods more involved in the restrictive
covenanis than were involved in this. We usuatly dont
see the applicant writing their own restrictive
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to get il in gear. All right, 15 minutes. * /

Commissioner Neshund had a question. “

MS. NESLUND: Thank you. Mine's actually :
more 4 question jotting down, raising my band for a
while, Buy, you know, obviously it goes withoul saying
that this is extremely chalienging, troubling. I have F;
young children, Ican't imagine — although [ have
neighboss with barking dogs that keep us up. But that's
another, you know, story.

But I'm sympathetic and sensitive to —~ 1o
what you-all are going through. But on — on the other
hand, we had a code that's in place. We bave 2 diveclor
who has the authority where — let's be frank — there
are many gray arcas in this code. Hence code next.
Hence a lot of things that are going on, development
review processes that are o mess.

And so I'm also trying (o stay, you know,
tunne! visicn to some degree focused on the fand use
interpretation. Right? It's what wete here for. Now
mind you of ¢ourse there are many trickle down and many
things that have happened since that decision way nmde.
But as | understand it, our task is really to focus on
the codes thot were in ploce, how Mr. Guemsey made the
determination.

And 1 too combed through all this. [am
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covenant,

MR. GUERNSEY: Idon' believe the
applicant wrote their, you kitow, own restriclive
covenant per se but that it was something that was
dmfted by the law department. And it was one where
this isn't a regular zoning case. ‘There's not a zoning
map change changing from one district to another,

This was something that was suthored
originally in 2008. We asked in 2011 with the site plan
und to try to clarify the bounds where the church
stopped.

MS. BAILEY: Thank you.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right.

MS. HAWTHORNE: I'd like o make a motion
to extend the public hearing or not extend the closed
public hearing but 1o extend the public meeting after 10
for anothier 15 mrinutes,

MR. GOFT: Second.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: All right. Objection?
Allright. Well extend to 10:15, 10:16.

MS. HAWTHORNE: Well, it's 10:05 now.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Is it 10:05?

MS. HAWTHORNE: So you might as well get
real thrifty and -

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Verizon — Verizon nceds
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certainly not an attomey. [ don't want to in any way I
come acrass that [ am, although T have been working in
land use for 15 years. So 1 havea little bit of
maybe - | don't know - expaience.

But, you know, frankly when I lock at it
just froun the religious assembly use and Mr, Guemsey
using his I don' know how many years experience and
good judgment | could sec how fioen a use perspective you |3
Irve your primary church, your sanctuary, Call it what i
you want, you have this accessory amphitheater.

And when you're looking at it strictly on
use [ see how that -- that use could be explained where
I do, again, sympathize and see the concern of the
neighbor is how it — how it did reach a different mass.
When you're looking at what is the use it’s a use. It's
not the size of the property. It's not the size of the
building, It's all these things Mr. Guemsey said.

So when we didn't have a code that
tegulated the 50 peaple and all of that which is in
place now I guess 1 I am extremely sympathetic. But I}

1 at this point cven with the Scction 9-2-1 I'm leaning
maore towarls Eric's leaning in the vein that it doesn
apply here.

I -1 don' sec liow it applies here

because Mr. Guemnsey sinted that this religious assembly i
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and the amphitheater was part of the principal use. So
the temporary use section in my opinion docs not apply.
So again, T just — there's no easy answer
here. And | too [ think would side with my fellow board
members that, ifthere was any way for you guys to, you
kmow, have o powwow and = and - and try to come 1o
some sort of agreement, be sympathetic to one another,
that would be the most ideal because, you know, frankly
from an interpretation and code slandpoint I'm just
spenking for myself. [ think I'd have n hard time
overtuming,
CIHAIR BURKHARDT: Commissioner Benaplio?
MR. BENAGLIO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr.
Chair. Iecho what has been said about the events that
have transpired since 2008. We want 1o stay focused on
the lond use, We want (v stay focused that we have n
particular time that we have to follow
| also want lo remember this is the
live  live music capital in Austin, Texas. don\
want to impress any religion and I supe don't want to
impress anybody that believes this is a religious use.
I'believe it's religious use. | believe it's an
accessory.
Talso think that one of the overriding,
in fect, number one commands is love one ancther and
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specifically and would be very difficult lo overturn
based on fhat aloee, Thank you.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Any linal commenis? All
right,

MR. LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Just one -- one
question for the church. Would yall be willing to even
consider enclosing the amphithenter and making it a
theater, an enclosed building?

MR. VON OHLEN: It would only take one
£250,000 fundmiser, maybe two.

MR. BROUGHTON: The church i3 willing 10
cogage in good-feith conversativns with our neighbors
about what jt would take to address their concerns. We
have been. The beginning point foc all ol those
discussions has been you cannot build i, we'll never -
we will never tolerate it being built,

And so we haven't golten much — we
haven't gotten far, Amd $0 we - we will contimie lo be
willing to engage in discussions. When you say enclose
it we already have a fully enclosed worship center
that - thai houses the exact same cvents Ihat we house
in the amphitheater.

The evenis thal nre in the amphitheater
re not enteriainnent and they're not the - the
restrictive covenant that you asked about specifically
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treat each other as you would treat yourself, And|
would hope that we could do that in this context. This
kind of thing divides and division has no place
amongst — omongsl us,

We see that all over the world and we've
had cnough of that. 1 -- I applaud the [ -- the coneept
of the two factions getting together, if it can'l be in
love, at Jenst in some sort of neutral spol where we can
hash cut some details. This can be accomplished Tam
sure.

Sound is not our thing, 1t's = it's nol
anything that we'ro here to make any kind of decisions
abaut, While that affects your life [ appreciate that
completely. 1--1definitely would ask and implore you
to put our most humble hals on in forgiveness and our
most accominodating hats and see what we can come up with
that will work.

This i2 the 215t century and there's
amazing ways to solve these problems. Mosily it 1okes
money and it will Ioke a little more saerifice on the
part of the church. Bui it's worth it. One soul is
worth whatever you got to spend, period,

And 50 that's my belief. And -1
apploud everything that the board has snid thus for and
Iogree. This is 8 2008 issuc. 1 is a land use [ssue
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prohibits us from having commercial events in this
amphitheater.

MR. VON OHLEN: But — but we'te not
tatking aboul that. We're already oll past that now,

So where — where he's at now is to have everybody come
together and work together.

And —and [ hear evea from their
emotional response that maybe and — and I'm going to
say something that's a Tinle — littde out there, okay,

o litle bit. But we cannot go back to what happened
back then. That's — that time is gone.

And the time that you guys give each other
to work this out is going to be the most precious, most
expensive gift that you can give each other because
you're going to give each other time to work this out.
Once you've given that time, once you give lime lo
anything you cannot teke it back.

We have to deal with where we are at in
the now. The now is right here today. And right here
today we've got a situntion where we need to have this
group or we need to have this group work (opether
because, if it does come back to us, it -- nobody’s
going Lo be happy.

And maybe one proup may - the way I'm
feeling the dais it could go anywhere. And so it would

A M L S D T T e

ken@kenowen.com * www.kenowen.com
800.829.6936 * 512.472.0880

(Pages 114 to 117)

e TV |

[

e L T T A B e oy



Page 118

be better if the community was to work this out rather
Iban to have it come back over here, So let's < let's
Just stay right here where we are right now.

1 bear from that response that - Fn not
going fo interpeet [t -- that hey, you know, maybe
before that may have been the way it is but they're
willing to work with you now, 1can see-- Imean |
know the church in the goodness of your heart that you
guys are willing 1o work - work with thein, Solels —

MR, BROUGHTON: We're certainly willing to
wark with them. It's always been our heart to be good
neighbors. And we would like them to come to our
church,

MR. YON OHLEN: Well, thar's — well, then
what I would like to do ~ what 1 would like to do then,
M. Chair, is [ would like to see if we could cotertain
a motion that's ~ give them on opportunity 10 go and -«
and find some common - common ground somewhere.

Nobody's going to be a hundred percent
happy — because ' ready to make a motion. And know
a lot of people will be upset.

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Commissioner Voo Ohlen?

MR, VON OHLEN: And so I'd like to calia
question on my list of molicns ~

CHAIR BURKHARDT: 1 hado't heard a motion
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now,
You'll have an opportunity to prescat
yourseil and then, if it doesn't work out, then we have

to make a decision for you just so that everybody
understands. Is that comrect, Brent? Thank you. [in
not a lawyer either. So I had to ask hiw.
CHAIR BURKHARDT: Alfrighl. Commissioncr
Hawthome bas moved to postpone uatil February 8 --
MR, VON OHLEN: Second.
MS. HAWTHORNE: I'msorry, Go ahead.
CHAIR BURKHARDT: February 8th, Mr. Von
Ohilen seconds. Is there any discussion on the motion?
MS, BAILEY: | just would hope that maybe
you lake a look at the restrictive covennnt and the —
and the langunge that could be changed in that because
thnt -- that's aot ovestuming -- and legal may not be
happy with me on this,
But that's not overturning the site plan.
I's rat overtuming the building pennit, which m sure
that would make you heppier and you sadder. But it
might be a way to come to a middle ground oo some
clearer language on what is expecled from both of you.
Sa Iwould bope that that is something
that — Wiat might be looked at. I'm sure there's other
avenues. But maybe that is one that could be looked at
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carlier.

MS. HAWTHORNE:; I -1 spit out 2 motiorn.
[ -- I would like to postpone the case for action. And
iy - and I'm sure everybody's going to make that
hormible noise that everybody was making a minute ago.

So T would like to postponce to February
8th, which would be the meeting In February. I don't
think that to postpone until January will be enough time
with the holidays for everyone fo actually make a
concerted effort.

And that is my motion. And ifIgeta
second, I —

MR. VON OHLEN: I'm going lo second the
motion. But [ do want to say this so that the - so
that the audience knows. When we coms back to revisit
this motion we're not going to be going apening up 10 a
whole new case and listening to a bunch of folks talk
again. You -- you will probably have — and correct me
if I'm wrong, legal.

But what has happened historically is &
representative from one side will come and
representative from the other. You're going to tell us
pretty much what you've come to or may -- hopefully
maybe we don't need to see you, you work it out. But
it's not going to be a full-blown hearing like it has
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&s you talk to each other.

CHAIR BURKHARDT:; Other comuenis? I'd
like to second Commissioner Yon Ollen's comments. [
think you guys nced fo get logether, Ud like lo sec a
little more accommodation on the part of the church,
frankly.

I youll call the roll?

MS. HEL.DENFELS: Brooke -- Brooke Bailey?
Brooke Bailey?

MS. BAILEY: Yes.

MS. HELDENFELS: Michacl Benaglio?

ML BENAGLIO: Yes.

MS, HELDENFELS: Williun Burkhardt? E

ErryermeyTTOITORTITITY

CHAIR BURKHARDT: Yes,

MS. HELDENFELS: Eric Goff?

MR. GOFF; Yes,

MS. HELDENFELS: Melissa Howthomne?
MS. HAWTHORNE: Yes.

MS, HELDENFELS: Don Leighion-Burwell?
MR, LEIGHTON-BURWELL: Yes.

MS. HELDENFELS: Melissa Neslund?

MS. NESLUND: Yes. i

—_—
TR o

MS, HELDENFELS: James Valadez?

MR, VALADEZ: Yes,
MS. HELDENFELS: Michoe! Von Olden?
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1 MR. VON OHLEN: Yes. \
2 CHAIR BURKHARDT: Allright. Hopefully g
3 well have an agreement on the Tth ~ excuse me — the
4  2nd.
5 MS, HAWTHORNE: The Bth.
[ CHAIR BURKHARDT: Well, the 8th,
7 MS, HELDENFELS: | can validate parking.
8 CHAIR BURKHARDT: The meeling's adjoumed.
9  Thank ysu,
10 (Proceedings concluded at 10:15 p.m.)
11
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1 CERTIFICATE
2 STATE OF TEXAS
: COUNTY OF TRAVIS )
1, David Dateman, CSR in and for the State of Texas,
5  dohereby centily that ke above-captivned malter came
on for hearing before the Boand of Adjustment of the
6  City of Ausiin on the 9th day of December 2015, as

~1

10
1
12
i3

14
15

17
ig
19
20
21
22
23

25

hereinbwfone setout.

I FURTHER CERTIFY ilat the proceedings of said
meen.nl were reported o me, mzmtely reduced to
typewriting under my supervision and control and thal
the forcgping peges ore a full, true and correct
tmnseription of sald pmcwdinp.

[ FURTHER CERTIFY that | nm necither atiomey or
counse] for, related Lo, nor employed by nny parties w
the action of these proceedings and, farther, [am nota
relative or enployee of any counscl employed by the
partics herete or financially interested in the action.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN o under my hand nnd_ml uf
office on this the ___ day of December, 2015,

P S —

David Bateman, Texas CSR #7578
Cert. Expires 12312017

Ken Owen & Asscciales, L
801 West Avenue

Austin, Texas 78701
512.472.0880

keo(@kenowen.com
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